
Mark James  LLM, DPA, DCA
Prif Weithredwr,
Chief Executive,
Neuadd y Sir, Caerfyrddin.  SA31 1JP
County Hall, Carmarthen.  SA31 1JP

MONDAY, 11TH DECEMBER, 2017

TO: ALL MEMBERS OF THE SOCIAL CARE & HEALTH 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

I HEREBY SUMMON YOU TO ATTEND A MEETING OF THE 
SOCIAL CARE & HEALTH SCRUTINY COMMITTEE WHICH WILL 
BE HELD IN THE CHAMBER, COUNTY HALL, CARMARTHEN AT 
2.00 P.M. ON MONDAY, 18TH DECEMBER, 2017 FOR THE 
TRANSACTION OF THE BUSINESS OUTLINED ON THE 
ATTACHED AGENDA. 

Mark James CBE

CHIEF EXECUTIVE

PLEASE RECYCLE

Democratic Officer: Michelle Evans Thomas
Telephone (Direct Line): (01267) 224470
E-Mail: MEEvansThomas@carmarthenshire.gov.uk
Ref: AD016-001

Document Pack



SOCIAL CARE & HEALTH
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

14 MEMBERS

PLAID CYMRU GROUP – 7 MEMBERS

1. Councillor Kim Broom
2. Councillor Alun Davies
3. Councillor Tyssul Evans
4. Councillor Jean Lewis
5. Councillor Emlyn Schiavone
6. Councillor Gwyneth Thomas [Chair]
7. Councillor Dorian Williams

LABOUR GROUP – 4 MEMBERS

1. Councillor Ken Lloyd
2. Councillor Andre McPherson
3. Councillor Eryl Morgan
4. Councillor Louvain Roberts

INDEPENDENT GROUP – 3 MEMBERS

1. Councillor Ieuan Wyn Davies [Vice-Chair]
2. Councillor Rob Evans
3. Councillor Edward Thomas



AGENDA  
1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE. 

2. DECLARATIONS OF PERSONAL INTERESTS. 

3. DECLARATION OF PROHIBITED PARTY WHIPS. 

4. PUBLIC QUESTIONS (NONE RECEIVED). 

5. REVENUE BUDGET STRATEGY CONSULTATION 2018/19-
2020/21. 

5 - 34

6. COMMUNITIES DEPARTMENTAL DRAFT BUSINESS PLAN 
2018/19-2021. 

35 - 90

7. UPDATE ON TRADING STANDARDS INITIATIVES - PROTECTION 
OF ELDERLY AND VULNERABLE CITIZENS IN 
CARMARTHENSHIRE. 

91 - 102

8. EXPLANATIONS FOR NON-SUBMISSION OF SCRUTINY 
REPORTS. 

103 - 106

9. FORTHCOMING ITEMS 107 - 108



This page is intentionally left blank



SOCIAL CARE & HEALTH SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
18th DECEMBER 2017

REVENUE BUDGET STRATEGY CONSULTATION 2018/19 to 2020/21
Appendix A – Corporate Budget Strategy 2018/19 to 2020/21
Appendix A(i) – Efficiency summary for the Social Care & Health Service
Appendix A(ii) – Growth Pressures summary for the Social Care & Health Service
Appendix B – Budget extracts for the Social Care & Health Service 
Appendix C – Charging Digest for the Social Care & Health Service 

To consider and comment on the following issues:
 Members consider and comment on the budget strategy proposals
 Members consider and comment on the proposals for delivery of efficiency savings 

for their service area identified in Appendix A(i) 
 Members are also invited to bring forward any other proposals for efficiency savings
 Members examine the Departmental Budgets
 Members endorse the Charging Digests

Reasons: 
 The Executive Board at its meeting on 27th November 2017 will have considered 

the attached Revenue Budget Strategy 2018/19 to 2020/21 (Appendix A) and 
endorsed the report for consultation purposes. A verbal update will be given at the 
meeting in relation to any changes or specific proposals made by the Executive 
Board if appropriate.

To be referred to the Executive Board for decision: NO

Executive Board Member Portfolio Holders: 
 Cllr. David Jenkins (Resources) 
 Cllr. Jane Tremlett (Social Care & Health) 

Directorate:
Corporate Services 
 
Name of Head of Service:
Chris Moore

Report Author: 
Chris Moore

Designation:

Director of Corporate Services

 

Tel No. / E-Mail Address:

01267 224120 
CMoore@carmarthenshire.gov.uk  

Page 5

Agenda Item 5

mailto:CMoore@carmarthenshire.gov.uk


EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

SOCIAL CARE & HEALTH SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
18th DECEMBER 2017

REVENUE BUDGET STRATEGY CONSULTATION
2018/19 to 2020/21 

The objective of the report is to allow members to consider the corporate budget strategy 
for the financial years 2018/19 to 2020/21 and to consider the service delivery impact and 
options for the forthcoming years.
The report is set out as follows:-
Appendix A
 The attached report is a copy of the Revenue Budget Strategy 2018/19 to 2020/21 that 

has been presented to the Executive Board. As part of the budget consultation process 
the report is presented to this Scrutiny Committee for your consideration. 

 The report provides members with an initial view of the revenue budget issues for the 
forthcoming year and also reflects departmental submissions. 

Appendix B
Budget extracts for the Social Care & Health service, which incorporates the initial 
Efficiencies/Service rationalisation proposals already reflected in the budget for 
consultation.

Appendix C
Charging Digest for the Social Care & Health service. The charges for 2018/19 have yet to 
be adopted and any change to the proposed charges will impact on the budget/efficiency 
proposals.

DETAILED REPORT ATTACHED? YES

Page 6



IMPLICATIONS
I confirm that other than those implications which have been agreed with the appropriate Directors / 
Heads of Service and are referred to in detail below, there are no other implications associated with 
this report.

Signed:   Chris Moore Director of Corporate Services

Policy, 
Crime & 
Disorder and 
Equalities

Legal Finance ICT Risk 
Management 
Issues

Staffing 
Implications

Physical 
Assets 

YES NONE YES NONE NONE NONE NONE

1. Policy and Crime & Disorder  
The budget is being prepared having regard to the Improvement Plan.
2. Finance  
The report provides an initial view of the Budget Strategy for 2018/19, together with 
indicative figures for the 2019/20 and 2020/21 financial years. The impact on departmental 
spending will be dependent upon the provisional and final settlements from Welsh 
Government, and the resultant final Budget adopted by County Council.

CONSULTATIONS
I confirm that the appropriate consultations have taken in place and the outcomes are as detailed 
below:

Signed:   Chris Moore Director of Corporate Services

1. Local Member(s) – N/A 
2. Community / Town Council – N/A
3. Relevant Partners – Consultation with relevant partners will be undertaken and 
results will be reported during the budget process.             
4. Staff Side Representatives and other Organisations – Consultation with other 
organisations will be undertaken and results will be reported during the budget process.

Section 100D Local Government Act, 1972 – Access to Information
List of Background Papers used in the preparation of this report:

THESE ARE DETAILED BELOW: 

Title of Document File Ref No. / Locations that the papers are available for public inspection

2018/19 3 year 
Revenue Budget Corporate Services  Department, County Hall, Carmarthen

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



DETAILED REPORT APPENDIX A

1

REPORT OF DIRECTOR OF CORPORATE SERVICES

Social Care & Health Scrutiny Committee
  

18th December 2017

REVENUE BUDGET STRATEGY 2018/19 to 2020/21
(Copy of Executive Board report 27/11/17)

HEAD OF SERVICE & DESIGNATION.

C Moore, Director of Corporate Services

DIRECTORATE

Corporate 
Services

TELEPHONE NO.

01267 224121

AUTHOR &  DESIGNATION 

O Bowen, Strategic Finance Officer

DIRECTORATE

Corporate 
Services

TELEPHONE NO

01267 224886

1. INTRODUCTION

1.1. Executive Board in July 2017 received a report on the Revenue Budget 
Outlook for 2018/2019 to 2020/2021 which appraised members of the 
financial outlook and the proposals for taking forward the budget 
preparation for the three year period.

1.2. This report provides Members with the current view of the Revenue 
Budget for 2018/2019 together with indicative figures for the 2019/2020 
and 2020/2021 financial years. The report is based on officers 
projections of spending need and takes account of the provisional 
settlement issued by Welsh Government on 10th October 2017. It also 
reflects the current departmental submissions for savings proposals.

1.3. Whilst signifcant work has already been undertaken in preparing the 
budget, this is only an initial position statement which will be updated 
over the coming months as the budget is further developed as figures 
are reviewed, and the final settlement becomes known.

1.4. The report is broken down into 5 parts:

 Funding Projections
 Budget Requirement
 Impact on the Authority’s budget requirement
 Consultation
 Conclusion 
 Recommendations   

Page 9



DETAILED REPORT APPENDIX A

2

2. PROVISIONAL SETTLEMENT 

2.1. The provisional settlement was announced on Tuesday 10th October 
2017. Indicative figures for individual Local Authorities were provided for 
the one financial year only, 2018/19, with an all Wales indicative figure 
for the following year.

2.2. The provisional settlement was better than this Council and Local 
Government in Wales in general anticipated. However, there was a 
reduction on the current year’s settlement which had an enhanced 
impact when inflationary factors, demographic and demand changes are 
considered there is a significant negative impact on the Council’s 
resources.

2.3. The main points of the Provisional Settlement 2018/2019 on an all 
Wales basis are as follows:

Page 10



DETAILED REPORT APPENDIX A

3

2.3.1. Local government revenue funding for 2018-19 set at 
£4.186 billion, a reduction of 0.5% (£19.1 million) 
compared to 2017-18, but this is after new responsibilities 
are taken into account of £6.0 million.

2.3.2. Within the settlement there is an indication that funding has 
been provided for essential public services and there is 
mention that the schools element of the settlement has 
been increased by £62m in 2018-19, rising to £108m in 
2019-20. The Social Care element has been increased by 
£42m in 2018-19 rising to £73m in 2019-20 however this 
is not clearly identifiable. 

2.3.3. £6.0 million to support delivery of local services to meet 
homelessness prevention duties.

2.3.4. £0.6 million alongside the settlement to support the 
elimination of charging for child burials. 

2.3.5. £1.8 million floor funding to ensure that no authority sees 
a reduction of greater than 1.0% compared to its 2017-18 
settlement allocation.

2.3.6. Council Tax Reduction Scheme funding again maintained 
at £244m, with arrangements for 2019-20 onwards to be 
determined as part of their wider considerations as to how 
to make Council Tax fairer.

2.3.7. The settlement includes ‘transfers in’ of £35m in respect of 
the waste element of the Single Revenue grant, Welsh 
Independent Living Grant (£26.889m), Social Care 
Workforce Grant (£19m), Looked After Children  
(£7.415m), Carer’s respite grant (£3m), and Social Care 
for prisoners in the secure estate (£0.412m).

2.4. The Settlement figures for Carmarthenshire are:

Page 11



DETAILED REPORT APPENDIX A

4

2.4.1. After adjustments for transfers in and out, the reduction in 
the provisional settlement is 0.5% (£1.187m). The 
Aggregate External Finance (AEF) therefore reduces from 
£259,147k in 2017/18 to £257,960k in 2018/19.

2.4.2. New responsibilities:

2.4.2.1. £399k to support delivery of local services to 
meet homelessness prevention duties.

2.4.3. Transfers In
2.4.3.1. £2.124m of funding previously provided via the 

(Environmental) Singe Revenue Grant
2.4.3.2. £3.135m  Independent Living Grant
2.4.3.3. £1.114m  Social care Workforce Grant
2.4.3.4. £0.388m  Looked after Children#
2.4.3.5. £0.181m Carers Respite Scheme

2.5. Details of the Welsh Government Service Specific Grants were updated 
on 24th October 2017 for 46 of the 58 differing grant schemes not 
transferred into the settlement, with the majority having been maintaied 
at a cash standstill position. There are however some grant streams 
that have seen significant reductions :

- The Education Improvement Grant – reduced from £133.282m in 
2017-18 to £118.137m in 2018-19.  The detail/rationale behind this 
change remains unclear at this stage. Broadly we understand that 
the grant is being reduced by £2m per annum and the £13m is said 
to be the transfer of the Minority Ethnic Achievement Grant (MEAG) 
into the Settlement. The settlement papers do not reflect this as 
being a transfer in, and the loss of this grant is not currently reflected 
in the Education Budgets. Estimated impact on Carmarthenshire is 
£218k for MEAG and a further £87k for Gypsy & traveller- total of 
around £305k

- The Single Revenue Grant (formerly the Environmental Grant) that 
stood at £61.790m in 2017-18. £35m of this grant has been 
transferred into the settlement which gives a comparative 2017-18 
figure of £26.79m. The published indicative figure for 2018-19 is 
£20.793m giving a reduction of £5.997m. Again we understand that 
the grant is being reduced by £2m per annum but there is no 
explanation as to the remainder of the reduction.  Potential loss to 
CCC £353k.

- School Uniform Grant - reduced from £700k in 2017-18 to nil in 
2018-19. WG state that it is being made available through the 
settlement, but it is not listed as such.  CCC allocation £36k.  The 
loss of this grant is not currently reflected in the Education Budgets

Page 12



DETAILED REPORT APPENDIX A

5

3. BUDGET REQUIREMENT 2018-2019

3.1. Current Years performance (2017/2018)

3.1.1. As the Authority’s core spending requirements remains 
constant year on year, a review of current year’s 
performance is important in identifying whether there are 
any underlying problems within the base budget

3.1.2. The current projection for the Revenue Outturn for 2017/18 
(based on the August 2017 monitoring) is as follows

Service
Approved

Budget
Total

Expenditure
Forecast

Variance
Forecast 
For Year

£'000 £'000 £'000
Chief Executive 12,919 13,350 431
Communities 89,888 90,882 994
Corporate Services 23,526 23,305 -221
Education and Children's Services 161,024 162,116 1,092
Environment 49,073 49,606 533
Departmental Expenditure 336,430 339,259 2,829

Cont from Dept/Earmarked  
Reserves -423 -423

Capital Charges -11,517 -12,217 -700
Levies and Contributions 9,487 9,487 0
Transfer to/ from Reserves -200 -200 0
Net Expenditure 334,200 335,906 1,706

The main reasons for the departmental overspends are as 
follows: 

o Chief Executive:  proposed savings in Standby (£224k) and 
Health and Safety (285k) not yet being delivered.

o Education and Children’s Services:  continues to face 
pressure due in the main to school based EVR and 
redundancy costs, Special Educational Needs Statements, 
shortfall in the Music service SLA income from schools and 
closed schools property decommissioning costs.

o Communities Department:  continues to deliver savings 
related to packages of social care but pressures of 
approximately £800k remain primarily due to slippage in 
receiving a full year effect of actions e.g. supported living 
hourly rate realignment, impact of Releasing Time to Care 
project on domiciliary care packages.  Other pressures 
include £127k Careline income affected by commissioning 

Page 13



DETAILED REPORT APPENDIX A

6

decisions undertaken by other local authorities, £50k Day 
Services for Older People- review ongoing.

o Environment Department: overspends are primarily due to 
non-achievement of car park income targets and a decrease 
in planning application income.

The Authority is currently forecasting a variance of £1.706m at 
the year-end that will have to be met from General Balances.

3.2. Validation

3.2.1. Validation reflects the changes in expenditure 
requirements to deliver the current level of services in future 
years. Primarily this is inflation, but also includes some service 
specific changes. The key validation factors are as follows:

2018/19 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21
Original Proposed

General inflation 2.5% 2.3% 2.0% 2.0%
Electricity 3.0% 5.0% 5.0% 5.0%
Gas 3.0% 5.0% 5.0% 5.0%
Fuel 3.0% 5.0% 5.0% 5.0%
Pay Inflation - non teaching 1.0% 2.0% 2.0% 2.0%
Pay Inflation - Teaching 1.0% 1.6% 2.0% 2.0%
Levies 1.0% 2.5% 2.5% 2.5%
Pension Contributions £101k £102k £208k £212k
Increased pay offer £900k £900k £900k £600k
Auto Enrolment £700k £700k £350k
Capital Charges £250k -£472k £250k £250k
Main service Specifics:
County Elections -£300k -£300k

3.2.2. There is a clear risk to the Budget Strategy that 
departments may find it difficult to manage their expenditure 
within these parameters, especially where the inflationary 
increases have been applied by service providers. This risk is 
something that will require close monitoring during the year.

3.2.3. There is much debate currently regarding the on-going pay 
cap of 1% for public sector workers, and as yet no clarity as to 
whether this cap will be relaxed, and if so whether any additional 
funding will be made available to meet the additional costs. The 
Budget as constructed therefore makes provision for a pay award 
of 2% in each of the financial years (part year effect for teachers 
in 2018-19), together with higher percentages to those on lower 

Page 14



DETAILED REPORT APPENDIX A

7

pay points due in part to the projected increases in the national 
Living Wage.

3.2.4. In total, validation adds £7.7m to the current year’s budget.

3.3. Cost reduction Programme

3.3.1. In anticipation of the settlement reductions, significant 
work in identifying further service efficiencies/rationalisation 
proposals has been undertaken. 

3.3.2. The savings targets set for each financial year are as 
follows:

2018/19
£m

2019/20
£m

2020/21
£m

Original targets 12.527 12.385 10.610

Updated targets (following 
Provisional Settlement)

8.544 11.454 11.000

3.3.3.  Accordingly departments have developed a range of 
proposals, and these efficiencies are included in Appendix A of 
this report.

3.3.3.1. The efficiency proposals are categorised as 
follows:

 Managerial – Efficiencies that result in no 
perceivable change to the overall level of service 
delivery but may in some instances affect quality 
of service provided

 Policy – Efficiency or service rationalisation 
proposals that will directly affect service delivery.

2018/19
£m

2019/20
£m

2020/21
£m

Managerial 5.225 3.417 2.471
Existing Policy 2.396 4.227 4.836
New Policy    725 1.393    902
Total 8.346 9.037 8.209

(Detail at Appendix A)

3.3.4. The summary sheet at Appendix A sets out the savings 
targets set for individual departments and the value of savings 
currently identified. 

3.4. New Expenditure Pressures

Page 15



DETAILED REPORT APPENDIX A

8

3.4.1. New expenditure pressures are the combination of 
additional cost to meet existing service needs e.g. increased 
client base/greater service take up and the costs of meeting 
change in service provision e.g. policy changes.  

3.4.2. In the setting of the current financial year’s budget, a total 
sum of £2.515m was allocated to services, of which £0.88m was 
allocated to Communities and £1.027m to Environment. 

3.4.3. The original budget outlook for 2018-19 and 2019-20 
contained a sum of £3m per annum to meet growth pressures, 
and the same provision for growth is currently reflected in the 
2020-21 indicative budget.

3.4.4. Initial growth bids of £6.3m have been submitted by 
departments for 2018-19, and the current strategy reflects the 
original provision of £3m being allocated to departments as 
follows:

£’000
Chief Executive 150
Communities 1,750
Education 350
Environment 750

Departments will need to prioritise their departmental allocation 
against their original submissions

Detail at Appendix B.

3.5. Schools Delegated Budgets

3.5.1. The last year of WG funding protection for schools was 
2015/16, and whilst the Welsh Government provisional 
settlement makes no specific requirement for Local 
Authorities to protect school budgets, it does state ‘The 
school element of the settlement has been increased by 
£62 million in 2018-19. This ensures that we maintain the 
assumed Welsh Government share of core spending on 
schools at the level of 2017-18. In 2019-20 this rises to 
£108 million, reflecting our commitment to continued 
investment in education and to prioritise schools funding 
within a tighter overall settlement.’ However, whilst these 
statements are made it is unclear as to how these figures 
have been calculated and where the said money has come 
from given the overall reduction in the settlement. 

3.5.2. The current budget strategy proposals adopted in 
February 2017 assumed no schools protection, and the 
effect on schools delegated budgets were:

2018/19

Page 16



DETAILED REPORT APPENDIX A

9

£m
Previous Year Budget 108.746
Validation 2.326
Savings requirement -4.989
Net Adjustment -2.663
Proposed Delegated 
Budget

106.083

3.5.3 In light of the pressures on the school budgets and the lead 
in time required for the Education Department and the 
Senior Manager – TIC Schools Officer to deliver change, 
the proposed strategy for 2018-19 is not to reduce the 
schools delegated budgets. 

3.5.4 The proposed schools budget for 2018-19 will therefore 
stand at £108.746m which is the same as 2017/18. 

3.6. Internal Funding

3.6.1. Generally speaking whilst the use of reserves to support 
annual budgets should not be summarily discounted, it must be 
treated with caution. Funding on-going expenditure from such 
funds merely defers and compounds difficult financial problems 
to the following year. One-off items of expenditure within any 
budget proposal lend themselves better for such funding support.

3.6.2. In deliberating this point however, members must bear in 
mind any inherent risks that may be built into the budget 
strategy. These include:

- Challenging Efficiency targets 
- Future inflation/interest rates
- Current economic and political climate continuing
- Impact of BREXIT.
- Additional pressure on demand lead Services 
- Indicative ‘all Wales’ figures for 2019-20 only have 

been provided by Welsh Government in respect of 
settlements therefore there remains the potential 
for significant change in the future settlements.

- No indicative figures for 2020/21

3.6.3. The following table summarises the main categories of 
reserves held by the Authority.

1st  Apr 
2017
£’000

31st Mch 
2018
£’000

31st Mch 
2019
£’000

31st Mch 
2020
£’000

Schools Reserves 1,710 -365 -690 -940
General Reserves 9,304 7,598 7,598 7,598
Earmarked Reserves 74,132 32,056 26,878 17,233

Page 17



DETAILED REPORT APPENDIX A

10

3.6.4. School Reserves

3.6.4.1.Schools have delegated responsibility for the 
management of their own finances.   The level of 
reserves held by an individual school at any point 
in time will depend on a number of factors 
including the level of contingency fund that the 
school governing body considers appropriate, 
and the particular plans each school has for 
expenditure. Officers have yet to be informed of 
any transfers to/from these reserves by individual 
schools for future years.

3.6.4.2.Legislation allows schools to carry forward 
reserves from one financial period to another.  
The School Funding (Wales) Regulations 2010 
requires schools to limit their accumulated 
reserves at year end to £50,000 for Primary 
Schools and £100,000 for Secondary and 
Special Schools or 5% of their budget dependant 
on what is greater. School Improvement officers 
are currently working with schools to ensure they 
comply with the guidance. As at 31st March 2017, 
33 primary, 4 secondary and 1 special schools 
were in deficit and 8 primary and 4 secondary 
schools held surpluses in excess of the 
£50k/£100k threshold. 

3.6.5. General Reserves

3.6.5.1.In the changeable and challenging environment 
currently facing Local Government the Authority 
is committed to maintaining a reasonable level of 
General reserves or Balances.   Whilst there is 
no prescribed minimum level for Balances, 
Council has previously deemed 3% of net 
expenditure as being a prudent level, which has 
been accepted by our Auditors as being 
reasonable

3.6.5.2.The overall level of balances is taken into 
consideration each year when the annual budget 
is set and has on occasions been utilised to 
augment expenditure/reduce council tax. The 
2017-2018 budget was set on the basis of no 

Page 18



DETAILED REPORT APPENDIX A

11

transfers from the General Reserves. Based 
upon the August Budget monitoring (outlined in 
paragraph 3.1.2 above) there could be draw of 
£1,706k against General Reserves at the end of 
the current financial year.

3.6.5.3.Given the likely draw on this reserve in the 
current year therefore it is deemed imprudent at 
this stage to assume any further support for 
future years budgets from the current General 
Reserves. 

3.6.5.4.Taking account of these changes the average 
level of the general reserves is forecasted to be 
around 2.2% of net expenditure during 2018/19 
and consideration needs to be given to how 
these balances are built back up over future 
years.

3.6.6. Earmarked Reserves

3.6.6.1.The Authority holds earmarked reserves which 
have been set up to finance the delivery of 
specific projects, or in protecting the authority 
against future liabilities or issues.   The reserves 
can be summarised as follows:

Reserve 31 March 
2017

31 March 
2018

31 March 
2019

31 March 
2020

£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000
Insurance 9.945 9,795 9,845 9,895
Capital Funds 40,756 10,579 8,146 86
Development Fund 1,514 636 836 1006
IAG/OAG 9 0 0 0
Corporate Retirement Fund 2,842 2,069 1,296 506
Joint Ventures 1,168 647 782 917
Other 17,898 8,331 5,974 4,824
TOTAL 74,132 32,056 26,878 17,233

Page 19



DETAILED REPORT APPENDIX A

12

3.6.6.2.As can be seen from the table above the level of 
earmarked reserves fluctuates greatly year on 
year, and whilst the level in each fund is not an 
exact science it is based on an informed estimate 
and past experience of the likely call on the 
authority in future years in line with the intended 
purpose of each reserve. Great care must 
therefore be taken when considering utilising 
such funds for purposes other than those which 
they were created as this could lead to the 
authority being faced with substantial unfunded 
liabilities in the future

3.6.6.3.The budget proposals therefore assume nil 
contribution from reserves in support of the 
revenue budget in 2018/19 and a further analysis 
of the reserves held will be undertaken over the 
coming months with any further proposed 
utilisation being considered at the budget 
finalisation stage.

3.6.6.4.Taking account of the proposals within this 
report, the Director of Corporate Services 
confirms that overall the estimated level of 
financial reserves (as indicated above) is 
adequate for the financial year 2018/19, with the 
General Reserves being at the minimum that 
could be supported. However the Director is very 
conscious of the ongoing commitment to capital 
projects and of the demand on future services 
and therefore feels the reserves will need to be 
monitored closely going forward.

4. IMPACT ON THE AUTHORITY’S BUDGET STRATEGY

The table below provides an updated position on the current financial 
outlook taking account of the provisional settlement and also other 
recent validation changes. 

Page 20



DETAILED REPORT APPENDIX A

13

4.1. Current Financial Outlook (updated for the Provisional Settlement):

Current MTFP Proposed Financial Model

2018/19 
£’000

2019/20 
£’000

2018/19
£’000 

2019/20
£’000 

2020/21
£’000 

Previous Year’s Budget 334,401 333,102 334,401 343,937 344,003

General Inflation 2,248 1,877 2,317 1,838 1,864

Pay Inflation 5,079 5,095 4,784 5,095 4,908

Other 1,199 1,399 907 1,588 1,270

Growth 3,000 3,000 2700 3,000 3,000 

Transfers In/out 7,371

Original & approved PBB 
Proposals 

-12,525 -12,385 -8,543   -11,455    -11,000

Net Expenditure 333,102 332,087 343,937 344,003 344,045

Revenue Settlement -247,133 -242,190 -257,960 -254,091 -249,009

Council Tax Receipts -85,969 -89,897 -85,977 -89,912 -95,036 

Council Tax Increase: 4.12% 3.88% 4.12% 3.88% 5.00%

4.2. The total cost reductions now required for 2018/19 is £8.5m and for the 
3 year period are estimated at £31m. 

5. CONSULTATION

Budget consultation has been planned for the coming months and a summary 
of the individual approaches are as follows:

5.1. Members seminars. (November and December 2017)

5.2. The consultation process will commence online from the 27th  November 
2017.

5.3. Town & Community Councils and  commercial ratepayers consultation 
in December 2017.

5.4. Consultation with Scrutiny Committees during December 2017 and 
January 2018.

5.5. ‘Insight’ youth conference in November 2017.

5.6. Consultation with the Schools Budget Forum in December 2017

Page 21



DETAILED REPORT APPENDIX A

14

5.7. Trade Union Consultation December 2017/January 2018

6. WELLBEING OF FUTURE GENERATIONS (WALES) ACT 2015

6.1. In considering the budget proposals, members need to take into 
consideration the requirements of the Wellbeing of Future Generations 
(Wales) Act 2015. The Act requires that we must carry out sustainable 
development, improving the economic, social environmental and 
cultural well-being of Wales. 

‘… the public body must act in a manner which seeks to ensure that the 
needs of the present are met without compromising the ability of future 
generations to meet their own needs’

6.2. In doing so, we must demonstrate the following 5 ways of working:

 Looking at the long-term so that we do not compromise the ability 
of future generations to meet their own needs

 Understanding the root causes of the issues to prevent them 
recurring

 Taking an integrated approach so that we look at all well-being 
goals and objectives of other services and partners

 Collaboration – Working with others in a collaborative way to find 
shared sustainable solutions

 Involving a diversity of population in decisions that affect them

6.3. Carmarthenshire’s Well Being objectives:

Start Well

1. Help to give every child the best start in life and improve their early life 
experiences

2. Help children live healthy lifestyles

3. Continue to improve learner attainment for all

4. Reduce the number of young adults that are Not in Education, 
Employment or Training 

Live Well

5. Tackle poverty by doing all we can to prevent it, help people into work 
and improve the lives of those living in poverty

6. Create more jobs and growth throughout the county

7. Increase the availability of rented and affordable homes

Page 22



DETAILED REPORT APPENDIX A

15

8. Help people live healthy lives (tackling risky behaviour and obesity)

9. Support good connections with friends, family and safer communities 

Age Well

10. Support the growing numbers of older people to maintain dignity and 
independence in their later years

11. A Council wide approach to support Ageing Well in Carmarthenshire 

In a Healthy and Safe Environment

12. Look after the environment now and for the future

13. Improve the highway and transport infrastructure and connectivity

14. Promote Welsh Language and Culture

7. CONCLUSION

7.1. Currently the budget proposals assume the full delivery of all of the  
£25.6m savings proposals submitted, together with the identification and 
delivery of the shortfall in savings proposals of £0.198m in 2018-19, 
£2.4m in 2019-20 and £2.7m in 2020-21.

7.2. Further cost reductions need to be identified to deliver a balanced 
budget in each of the three years

7.3. The current budget proposals assume a Council Tax increase in line 
with the original MTFP of 4.12% in 2018-19, 3.88% in 2019-20 and 
5.00% in 2020-21. A 1% movement in the Council Tax rise equates to 
+/-£820k

8. RECOMMENDATION

8.1. Note the contents of the report and approve as a basis for consultation 
on the three year budget strategy 3 year Budget Strategy and approve 
as a basis for consultation, and specifically seek comments from 
consultees on the efficiency proposals in Appendix A. 

8.2. Give consideration as to what additional savings proposlas can be 
identified to deliver a balanced budget in each of the three financial 
years 

Page 23



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix A(i)

2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 Total

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Chief Executive 570 563 483 1,616

Education & Children 1,285 1,270 1,088 3,643

Schools Delegated 4,989 4,933 4,226 14,148

Corporate Services 254 251 215 720

Community Services 3,646 3,605 3,088 10,339

Environment 1,783 1,763 1,510 5,056

12,527 12,385 10,610 35,522

Original Proposals Variance

ORIGINAL

2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 Total 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 Total 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 Total 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 Total Target

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Chief Executive 453 445 285 1,183 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 453 445 285 1,183 -434

Education 740 260 235 1,235 70 0 0 70 250 300 50 600 1,060 560 285 1,905 -1,738

Schools Delegated 0 0 0 0 4,989 4,062 4,381 13,432 0 500 0 500 4,989 4,562 4,381 13,932 -216

Corporate Services 227 271 222 720 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 227 271 222 720 0

Community Services 2,455 1,423 1,233 5,111 0 0 0 0 365 304 274 943 2,820 1,727 1,507 6,054 -4,285

Environment 1,351 1,018 496 2,865 0 165 455 620 110 289 578 977 1,461 1,472 1,529 4,462 -594

5,225 3,417 2,471 11,113 5,059 4,227 4,836 14,122 725 1,393 902 3,020 11,009 9,037 8,209 28,255 -7,267

2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 Total

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Chief Executive 453 502 482 1,437

Education & Children 1,060 1,175 1,128 3,363

Schools Delegated 2,326 4,562 4,381 11,269

Corporate Services 227 251 241 719

Community Services 3,007 3,334 3,202 9,543

Environment 1,471 1,630 1,566 4,667

8,544 11,454 11,000 30,998

Current Proposals Variance

REVISED

2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 Total 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 Total 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 Total 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 Total Target

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Chief Executive 453 445 285 1,183 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 453 445 285 1,183 -255

Education 740 260 235 1,235 70 0 0 70 250 300 50 600 1,060 560 285 1,905 -1,458

Schools Delegated 0 0 0 0 2,326 4,062 4,381 10,769 0 500 0 500 2,326 4,562 4,381 11,269 0 * Assumes Yr 1 proposals changed

Corporate Services 227 271 222 720 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 227 271 222 720 1

Community Services 2,455 1,423 1,233 5,111 0 0 0 0 365 304 274 943 2,820 1,727 1,507 6,054 -3,489

Environment 1,351 1,018 496 2,865 0 165 455 620 110 289 578 977 1,461 1,472 1,529 4,462 -205

5,225 3,417 2,471 11,113 2,396 4,227 4,836 11,459 725 1,393 902 3,020 8,346 9,037 8,209 25,592 -5,406

MANAGERIAL EXISTING POLICY PROPOSALS NEW POLICY PROPOSALS TOTAL PROPOSALS

TOTAL PROPOSALS

REVISED TARGETS

ORIGINAL TARGETS

MANAGERIAL EXISTING POLICY PROPOSALS NEW POLICY PROPOSALS

P
age 25



Efficiency Proposals MANAGERIAL

Department
2017-18 

Budget

2018-19 

Proposed

2019-20 

Proposed

2020-21 

Proposed Total

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Community Services

Care and Support
Care and Support

Domiciliary Care - in-house service 5,535 

Domiciliary Care Services, also known as Homecare, provide practical or personal care for someone in 

their own home. This could be because health or mobility is declining, or a person may have been in 

hospital or they have a long term health condition. As at the end of August 2017 there were 1,041 clients 

receiving a Domiciliary Service.

30 30 30 90

Due to the nature fo the business, shifts have to be covered in times of staff sickness. We aim to 

continually reduce the annual level of sickness and therefore staffing costs making the business 

more efficient. We can also make further efficiencies - ie travel logistics, with better rotaring 

(especially following the planned IT investment). 

Domiciliary Care - in-house night service 5,535 

The “Through the Night Domiciliary Service” works in conjunction with other night services providing non-

medical personal care to people living in the community through the Community Alarm Service. For the 

period April 2016 to September 2016 the department carried out 3906 planned night calls and 355 

unplanned night calls.

30 30

Following a joint review of the service by ourselves and the NHS, it has been agreed to deliver this 

service in a different way. The proposal brings together the existing service with the accute 

response team provided by the health service. This will lead to be a better integrated service and 

reduce costs for both organisations. 

Reablement 1,658 

The reablement service encourages service users to regain their confidence and skills following a period 

of illness or an injury. The programme is agreed by a multidisiplinary team and supports individuals to 

meet their expressed goals to return to a level of independence and includes support with daily living 

activities and other practical tasks. The programme may last up to 6 weeks.

126 126
Reduction of 200 hours / 8 posts to reflect changing service demands and alternative service 

provision form the NHS. These posts are currently vacant. 

Residential Homes 2,890 

People may move into a care home because they have gradually found it more difficult to manage at 

home, or because an illness or accident has affected their ability to live independently. Residential care 

homes offer services such as laundry and meals and help with personal care. Some homes offer short-

term stays but normally they provide more long-term or permanent care. As of the 30th September 2017 

there were 858 clients funded in a Residential Care Home across all sectors. 

175 175

Addiontal income by reshaping existing service to residential reablement and relase of underutilised 

beds. Beds previously commissioned by Local Health Board for convalescence will be used for 

Social Care commissioning.

Care and Support Management 854 
Ensuring resliant management of Care and Support services for residential homes,reablement, domicilary 

care and sheltered hosuing services. 
20 20

Additonal recharge to the HRA folllwing divisional restructure to increase management and usage 

of sheltered housing stock and too complement residential care.  

Divisional

Divisional Staffing costs 2,257 

The staffing complement of Housing (Council Fund) ,Public Protection and Support & care services  total 

nearly 400 FTE’s with a pay budget of over £8M. Reviews of service provision will include staffing as part 

of that process, which will produce savings over the medium term. This also includes acceptance of 

severance requests.

160 50 80 290
Amend staff budgets to reflect vacancy factor 2018-2019 £30k; Divisional restructure to include on-

going severences for Housing, Public Protection and Care & Support Services.

Total Care & Support Services 541 80 110 731

Integrated Services

Domiciliary Care 5,535 

Domiciliary Service, also known as home care, provides practical or personal care for someone in their 

own home. This could be because health or mobility is declining, or a person may have been in hospital or 

they have a long term health condition. As at the end of August 2016 there were 1041 clients receiving a 

Domiciliary Service

500 130 0 630

Reduce % of Double handed care to match best performing authorities' performance by March 

2020.  Reduce % of people receiving 4 calls+ per day. Halve the number of small packages of care 

by 2020. Note that scope to reduce Dom Care will be very limited by Year 3.

Divisional Supplies 854 

Services provided to Older People and Physical Diabilities client groups have non-staff controllable 

budgets of approx £34m.  The Deapartment has identified that some of these budgets will not have an 

inflationary uplift and budgets will be held at the same level as the year before. 

122 0 0 122 No inflationary uplift.

Management & Support - staffing reductions 854 Management and operational workforce 60 60 60 180 Review of staffing

Information Advice & Assistance 7,008 

The provision of an Information, Advice and Assistance (IAA) service is a new duty under the Social 

Services and Wellbeing(Wales) Act. Evidence has demonstrated that providing a robust IAA service to the 

public empowers individuals to find solutions to support their needs. This focus on prevention helps 

people to maintain their own independence and wellbeing and can reduce demand on formal care 

services 

0 90 90 180
Support people to manage their difficulties without care.                                                    This PBB 

has been delayed until 2019/20, as the service is still under development.

Residential Placements 10,171 

Residential care is provided in local authority and private sector care homes for individuals who can no 

longer live independently in the community. Depending on the nature of their needs, their placement may 

be made by the local authority or jointly with the health board, or entirely by the health board if they qualify 

for free continuing health care (CHC).

145 340 286 771 Manage the demand from hospitals for residential & nursing placements (including CHC)

Total Integrated Services 827 620 436 1,883

FACT FILE EFFICIENCY DESCRIPTION

P
age 26



Efficiency Proposals MANAGERIAL

Department
2017-18 

Budget

2018-19 

Proposed

2019-20 

Proposed

2020-21 

Proposed Total

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

FACT FILE EFFICIENCY DESCRIPTION

Learning Disabilities

Residential Care, Supported Accommodation an 

Community Packages - reshaping and reproviding 

services

6,596 

People may move into a care home because they have gradually found it more difficult to manage at 

home, or because an illness or accident has affected their ability to live independently. Residential care 

homes offer services such as laundry and meals and help with personal care. Some homes offer short-

term stays but normally they provide more long-term or permanent care. As of the 30th September 2016 

there were 185 Mental Health & Learning Disability clients funded in a Private Residential Care 

Home.Supported living is a type of residential support that helps vulnerable adults, including people with 

learning disabilities, to live independently in the community. Supported living arrangements are very 

flexible and are designed to give each person choice and control over their home and the way they live 

their life.  As of the 30th September 2016 there were 146 Mental Health & Learning Disability clients 

receiving supported accommodation.

482 75 50 607

Reviewing and right sizing of residential placements; Stepping down to supported living/Shared 

Lives; De registration of residential homes to supported living; Collaborative funding opportunities; 

Recommissioning; Positive behavioural interventions; alternative  community provision; costing 

model  in residential care; right sizing of individual packages; implementation of capped  rate; 

maximising potential of assistive technology; releasing time to care; Ordinary Residence issues.

Day Services 2,845 

During the review and transformation of MH&LD day services we have identified individuals who are 

spending a long time on transport, at times travelling across the county past services which could support 

their needs. The current arrangement incurs increased costs and can have a detrimental effect on the 

person due to th length of time on transport. We will review those identified and propose alternative 

shorter and mor efficient arrangments which may include individuals having to use their own transport 

funded by their mobility allowance.

20 20
Undertake review of transport in day services  with view to establishing more cost effective 

arrangements

Direct payments 1,306 

Citizen directed co-operatives are a key theme of the SS&WA. The use of direct payments allows 

individuals to have more independence when deciding how they achieve what is important to them and 

increases the oportunity for them to have their support needs met within their community and maximise 

their own assets. We are currently changing the focus of day services in order to provide more specialist 

outcome focussed interventions, this will include moving some individuals on from the building based 

services and into the community with their support being tailored to their specific outcomes and supported 

via direct payments. Where appropriate at this will include pooled payments based on communities of 

interest in order to ensure effective use of funds.

48 125 125 298 Develop social enterprise, citizen centred cooperatives for Direct payments 

Divisional Staffing 383 

An ammended divisional structure will be developed for agreement viathe appropriate process to deliver 

the new service proposals, with less building based services and a change in function we envisage there 

will be a reduction in managerial posts.

100 140 115 355
Divisional staffing costs linked to above Service proposals, ongoing severences and Divisional 

restructure

Total Learning Disabilities 650 340 290 1,280

Support Costs

Commissioning Team 1,181 

The service provides business support for Social Care.  The functions include payment of creditors, 

management of transport and premises; the assessment and collection of income for residential and non 

residential services; and general business support

47 46 39 132 reduction in staffing

Support Services 1,673 

The service provides business support for Social Care.  The functions include payment of creditors, 

management of transport and premises; the assessment and collection of income for residential and non 

residential services; and general business support

79 79
Supplies and Services (Postage + tel + meetings) £34k, Transport £12K , Staffing - part time 

reduced hours £13k, staffing - re-structure

Total Support Costs 126 46 39 211

P
age 27



Efficiency Proposals NEW POLICY PROPOSALS

Department

2017-18 

Budget FACT FILE

2018-19 

Proposed

2019-20 

Proposed

2020-21 

Proposed Total EFFICIENCY DESCRIPTION

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Community Services
Care and Support

Day Services 1,027

Day opportunities (Services) in Carmarthenshire provide a chance for people to take part in activities outside 

of the home whilst also providing a break for carers.Some day opportunities are for people with mental health 

needs, learning disabilities and/or physical disabilities. As of the 30th September 2016 there were 550 clients 

receiving a Day Service.

50 25 75 Reshaping provision at Llys y Bryn.  Assumption September 2018

Integrated Services

Learning Disabilities

Day Services - Opportunities 2,845

LD & MH day services currently provide support for approximately 300 individuals across the county utilising 9 

different sites. The services provide opportunities for individuals to receive therapy, maintain their health and 

wellbeing, gain skills, socialise whilst also providing respite for carers. The review of day services has 

highlighted the need to develop community options and specialist services which will see a decline in the use 

of building based services. This will provide opportunities for us to develop intergenerational sevices in 

partnership with adult services within Coleshill and Manor rd and vacate the premisis at Crosshands.

285 245 250 780
Development and re-commissioining  services jointly with Older Pople's Services, the third sector 

and leisure  (currently working on options appraisal) 

Day Services - Complex Needs 2,845

Complex needs day services provide support for individuals with profound and multiple disabilities often 

requiring 1-1 support. We currently rely on external domicilary care agencies to provide the 1-1 support for 

some individuals due to a lack of capacity witnin the services existing budgets. With movement of individuals 

into community support options there will be increased capacity within building ased services which will 

replace the third sector provision.

30 30 Review third party provision within complex needs day services

P
age 28



Appendix A(ii) Growth Pressures

Demographic, Legislative or continuing pressures 

Description

2018-2019 2019-2020 2020-2021

£'000 £'000 £'000

Communities

Demographic pressures 3.9% growth in over 75's 1,656 1,656 1,656 
Based on anticipated increase in demand on residential and domiciliary care related to population growth

National Living Wage 1,763 1,862 2,095 
Current estimate on commissioned services if Govt make mandatory increases in hourly rate of Dom care and 

res care

Out of Hours Social Work Team 75 Cost of new team across children and adults to end reliance on overtime/standby social work

Deprivation of Liberty Standards (DoLS) backlog / Social 

Services and Well-being Act
150 150 150 

Cost of new legislative requirements on mental health teams to complete required assessments

-150 -150 -150 

Offset by potential  additional income resulting from Welsh Government decision to raise capped rate for 

Domiciliary Care charges (2017-2018 weekly charge from £60 to £70; assumtion for next 3 years - £10 

increase

1,750 

Mental Health and Learning Disability 250 Greater diagnosis of disability and life span of service users

Citizen's Advice Bureau (CAB) 35 

Total Communities 3,779 3,518 3,751 1,750

Proposed

Allocation

2018-2019

£'000

P
age 29



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Appendix B Budget Extract

Expenditure Income Net Expenditure Income Net Expenditure Income Net Expenditure Income Net

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

SOCIAL CARE

Older People Services

3,206 0 3,206 Commissioning S 3,266 0 3,266 3,329 0 3,329 3,393 0 3,393

7,811 -4,171 3,640 L.A Residential Homes S 8,026 -4,446 3,580 8,188 -4,535 3,653 8,353 -4,626 3,728

19,097 -8,851 10,247 Private Sector Residential Homes S 19,824 -9,054 10,769 19,872 -9,235 10,636 19,976 -9,420 10,556

743 0 743 Extra Care S 760 0 760 775 0 775 790 0 790

5,751 0 5,751 L.A Home Care Services S 5,644 0 5,644 5,547 0 5,547 5,550 0 5,550

308 -169 139 Meals On Wheels S 315 -173 142 321 -176 144 327 -180 147

629 0 629 Direct Payments S 694 0 694 758 0 758 823 0 823

246 0 246 Grants to Voluntary Organisations S 252 0 252 257 0 257 262 0 262

9,367 -2,201 7,165 Private Sector Home Care S 10,248 -2,252 7,996 11,058 -2,297 8,761 11,884 -2,343 9,541

1,387 -270 1,117 Management and Support S 1,204 -275 929 1,162 -280 882 1,120 -285 835

1,320 -1,394 -74 Careline S 1,444 -1,426 19 1,571 -1,454 117 1,700 -1,483 217

2,517 -800 1,717 Enablement S 2,441 -800 1,641 2,492 -800 1,692 2,544 -800 1,744

1,243 -65 1,178 Community Day Services S 1,223 -67 1,156 1,221 -68 1,153 1,245 -70 1,175

53,624 -17,921 35,703 55,339 -18,493 36,846 56,549 -18,846 37,703 57,967 -19,206 38,760

Physical/Sensory Disabled

634 -80 554 Occ Therapy Services S 647 -81 566 660 -82 579 674 -82 592

576 -114 462 Private Sector Residential Homes S 589 -117 472 601 -119 482 613 -121 491
1,397 -118 1,278 Group Homes S 1,429 -121 1,308 1,457 -123 1,334 1,486 -126 1,360

93 0 93 Community Support S 95 0 95 97 0 97 99 0 99

424 0 424 Private Sector Home Care S 434 0 434 442 0 442 451 0 451

1,020 -419 601 Aids + Equipment S 1,043 -420 623 1,064 -420 644 1,086 -422 664

144 0 144 Grants to Voluntary Organisations S 147 0 147 150 0 150 153 0 153

1,878 0 1,878 Direct Payments S 1,921 0 1,921 1,960 0 1,960 1,999 0 1,999

8 0 8 Manual Handling S 8 0 8 9 0 9 9 0 9

6,174 -732 5,442 6,313 -739 5,574 6,440 -745 5,695 6,569 -752 5,817

59,798 -18,653 41,145 Social Care  - Carried Forward 61,652 -19,232 42,421 62,989 -19,591 43,398 64,536 -19,958 44,578

SOCIAL CARE & HEALTH SCRUTINY

2017/18

S
ta

tu
to

ry
 

S
/N

S
/B

o
th 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21

P
age 31



Appendix B Budget Extract

Expenditure Income Net Expenditure Income Net Expenditure Income Net Expenditure Income Net

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

59,798 -18,653 41,145 SOCIAL CARE - Brought Forward 61,652 -19,232 42,421 62,989 -19,591 43,398 64,536 -19,958 44,578

Learning Disabilities

2,690 -905 1,785 Local Authority Employment & Training S 2,524 -914 1,610 2,573 -921 1,652 2,623 -929 1,694

953 0 953 Commissioning S 972 0 972 992 0 992 1,012 0 1,012

9,843 -3,232 6,611 Private Sector Residential Homes S 10,576 -3,307 7,270 11,411 -3,373 8,038 12,288 -3,440 8,848

1,306 0 1,306 Direct Payments S 1,337 0 1,337 1,286 0 1,286 1,234 0 1,234

5,956 -1,007 4,949 Group Homes / Supported Living S 6,193 -1,030 5,163 6,416 -1,050 5,366 6,644 -1,071 5,573

1,035 -812 223 Respite Care S 1,055 -812 243 1,076 -812 264 1,097 -812 285

145 0 145 Private Sector Home Care S 148 0 148 151 0 151 154 0 154

3,443 -262 3,181 Community Day Services S 3,400 -268 3,132 3,216 -274 2,942 3,023 -279 2,744

566 0 566 Transition Service S 577 0 577 588 0 588 599 0 599

2,207 -140 2,067 Community Support S 2,365 -143 2,221 2,412 -146 2,265 2,460 -149 2,311

208 0 208 Grants to Voluntary Organisations S 213 0 213 217 0 217 221 0 221

2,881 -2,175 706 Adult Placement Scheme S 2,945 -2,210 734 3,003 -2,242 762 3,063 -2,274 789

755 -28 727 Management and Support S 662 -28 634 526 -28 498 413 -28 385

0 0 0 WILG S 3,135 0 3,135 3,198 0 3,198 3,262 0 3,262

31,987 -8,562 23,425 36,100 -8,712 27,388 37,065 -8,846 28,219 38,095 -8,982 29,113

Mental Health

899 -69 830 Commissioning S 917 -69 847 935 -69 866 954 -69 885

6,427 -2,943 3,484 Private Sector Residential Homes S 6,575 -3,010 3,564 6,706 -3,071 3,636 6,840 -3,132 3,708

601 -189 412 Group Homes S 615 -194 422 627 -197 430 640 -201 439

136 0 136 Direct Payments S 139 0 139 142 0 142 144 0 144

691 -101 590 Community Support S 707 -103 604 721 -105 616 735 -107 628

265 -10 255 Community Day Services S 270 -10 260 275 -11 265 280 -11 269

96 0 96 Private Sector Home Care S 98 0 98 100 0 100 102 0 102

357 -142 215 Substance Misuse - Commissioning S 365 -142 223 372 -142 230 380 -142 238

9,472 -3,454 6,018 9,685 -3,529 6,156 9,878 -3,595 6,283 10,076 -3,663 6,413

Support Costs

2,522 -226 2,296 Departmental Support S 2,480 -228 2,253 2,516 -229 2,287 2,553 -231 2,322

246 0 246 Performance, Analysis & Systems NS 251 0 251 256 0 256 262 0 262

839 0 839 Commissioning Team S 857 0 857 877 0 877 904 0 904

169 0 169 Regional Collaboration Unit S 173 0 173 176 0 176 180 0 180

489 -69 420 Safeguarding and DoLS Team S 498 -70 428 508 -72 436 518 -73 445

1,574 -1,602 -27 Transport Holding Account S 1,614 -1,635 -21 1,652 -1,665 -14 1,691 -1,695 -4

5,838 -1,896 3,942 5,873 -1,933 3,940 5,985 -1,966 4,019 6,106 -1,999 4,108

107,095 -32,565 74,530 SOCIAL CARE TOTAL 113,311 -33,405 79,905 115,917 -33,997 81,920 118,813 -34,601 84,212

SOCIAL CARE & HEALTH SCRUTINY

2017/18

S
ta

tu
to

ry
 

S
/N

S
/B

o
th 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21

P
age 32



APPENDIX C

CHARGING DIGEST - Social Services

2016/17 

Actual

2017/18 

Budget

2018/19 

Budget

Business 

Unit

Service Provided 2017/18                        

Charge Levied                                                        

2018/19                        

Proposed Charge 

Comments

£ £ £ £ £

All Charges normally change from the date that 

DWP benefits increase for recipients. The changes 

will therefore be effective from either:

2,665 2,859 2,925 Laundry

Cost per person to max 1 load 2.35 2.40 2nd or 9th April 2018

296,554 370,938 379,470 Community meals incl day care

Cost per meal 4.30 4.70 2nd or 9th April 2018

*Final increase of a scruity recommendation to 

increase meals on wheels by £1 over 3 years 

Transport

Day Care Transport Charge (per return journey) FREE FREE

187,868 192,189 196,609 Respite Care Charge to Clients

Adults with learning difficulties (per wk) 116.27 118.94

All other adults except those receiving Higher Rate Attendance 

Allowance / Higher Rate Disability Living Allowance (per wk)

142.13 145.40

All other adults receiving Higher Rate Attendance Allowance / Higher 

Rate Disability Living Allowance (per wk)

193.85 198.31

2nd or 9th April 2018

2,180,977 1,974,799 2,020,219 Home Care Charges

Max charge (per wk) Awaiting 

announcement from 

Welsh Government

Awaiting 

announcement from 

Welsh Government

2nd or 9th April 2018

Home Care Charge (per hr) 10.55 10.80 2nd or 9th April 2018

Day Care - all adults (per session) 10.30 10.55 2nd or 9th April 2018

Employment Services & Day Opportunities FREE FREE N/A

Supported Employment FREE FREE N/A

Education Support (per hour) FREE FREE N/A

Supported Living (per hour) 10.55 10.80 2nd or 9th April 2018

Adult Placement Long Term Placement (per night) 10.30 10.55 2nd or 9th April 2018

Adult Placement Short/Short Breaks 10.30 10.55 2nd or 9th April 2018

Adult Placement Day Care/Sessional 2.10 2.15 2nd or 9th April 2018

Replacement Care 10.55 10.80 2nd or 9th April 2018

Community Support 10.55 10.80 2nd or 9th April 2018

Telecare (per week) 3.08 3.08 2nd or 9th April 2018

* Current inflation estimate is 2.3% provided by Accountancy

Now classed as Non-residential services, and 

capped at the WG rate. This should now follow 

inflation applied to other Non-residential services.

P
age 33



T
his page is intentionally left blank



SOCIAL CARE & HEALTH SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
18TH DECEMBER 2017

COMMUNITIES DEPARTMENTAL DRAFT BUSINESS PLAN 2018/19 - 2021
(Extracts relevant to Social Care & Health Scrutiny remit)

Purpose:
To give members an opportunity to review the draft Department’s business plan alongside the 
budget.

To consider and comment on the following issues:
Elements of the business plan relating to:-

 Care and Support Services
 Mental Health, Learning Disability and Safeguarding
 Integrated Services
 Commissioning Services
 Business Support
 Performance, Analysis and Systems Team

Reasons: 
 The integration of financial and business planning to ensure the sustainability of 

services 
 To give an opportunity for scrutiny to have oversight and development of the business 

plans by elected members  
(This was also a proposal for improvement by Audit Office)

To be referred to the Executive Board / Council for decision:      NO 

EXECUTIVE BOARD MEMBER PORTFOLIO HOLDER:- Cllr. Jane Tremlett (Social Care & Health) 
Directorate:
Communities
Director Jake Morgan
Report Author:
Extracts for: 
Robin Staines

Avril Bracey

Rhian Dawson

Chris Harrison

Lyn Walters

Silvana Sauro

Designations:

Director of Community Services

Head of Housing, Public Protection 
Care & Support 
Head Mental Health & Learning 
Disability Service

Head of Integrated Services

Interim Head of Strategic Joint 
Commissioning (Pembs and Carms)

Senior Business Support Manager

Performance, Analysis and Systems 
Manager

Tel Nos. & E Mail Addresses:

01267 224697
jakemorgan@carmarthenshire.gov.uk

01267 228960
RStaines@carmarthenshire.gov.uk

01267 242492
ABracey@carmarthenshire.gov.uk

01267 228900
RhianDawson@carmarthenshire.gov.uk

01437 776471 
Chris.harrison@pembrokewhire.gov.uk

01267 228768
DLWalters@carmarthenshire.gov.uk

01267 228897
SSauro@carmarthenshire.gov.uk

Page 35

Agenda Item 6

mailto:jakemorgan@carmarthenshire.gov.uk
mailto:RStaines@carmarthenshire.gov.uk
mailto:RStaines@carmarthenshire.gov.uk
mailto:IJones@carmarthenshire.gov.uk
mailto:Chris.harrison@pembrokewhire.gov.uk
mailto:DLWalters@carmarthenshire.gov.uk
mailto:SSauro@carmarthenshire.gov.uk


EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
SOCIAL CARE & HEALTH SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

18TH DECEMBER 2017

SUBJECT AND PURPOSE
COMMUNITIES DEPARTMENTAL DRAFT BUSINESS PLAN 2018/19 - 2021

(Extracts relevant to Social Care & Health Scrutiny remit)

To give members an opportunity to review the draft Department’s business plan 
alongside the budget.

1. BRIEF SUMMARY OF PURPOSE OF REPORT.
 The full business plan outlines the priorities for the department during 

2018/19 - 2021. 
 This version is an extract of the aspects relevant to Social Care & Health 

Scrutiny.

It identifies the Elements of the business plan relating to:-

 Care & Support – Page 22
 Mental Health and Learning Disability - Page 26-27
 Integrated Services - Page 28-29
 Commissioning Services – Page 30-32
 Business Support - Page 33
 Performance, Analysis and Systems Team - Page 34-35

Further work will be undertaken by the department following comments and 
engagement by Scrutiny and Executive board members.  Feedback from staff 
group’s to date has indicated that greater emphasis on an integrated Wellbeing 
related actions through the divisional plans would be welcomed.  Ensuring the 
sustainability of services through different methods in the face of growing 
demand was also considered important by staff. 

DETAILED REPORT ATTACHED? YES 

Page 36



IMPLICATIONS 
I confirm that other than those implications which have been agreed with the appropriate Directors / Heads 
of Service and are referred to in detail below, there are no other implications associated with this report :

Signed: Robin Staines                 Head of Housing, Public Protection Care & Support
             Avril Bracey                    Head Mental Health & Learning Disability Service
             Rhian Dawson                Head of Integrated Services
             Chris Harrison                Head of Strategic Joint Commissioning
             Lyn Walters   Senior Business Support Manager
             Silvana Sauro                 Performance, Analysis and Systems Manager
Policy, Crime 
& Disorder 
and Equalities

Legal Finance ICT Risk 
Management 
Issues 

Staffing 
Implications

Physical 
Assets  

YES YES YES NONE YES YES YES

1. Policy, Crime & Disorder and Equalities

The Well-being Future Generations Act (2015) requires that functions of the council should 
maximise their contributions the Well-being Objectives set by the Council. 
(Our Well-being Objectives maximise our contribution to the seven Well-being Goals of the Act 
and demonstrate the five ways of working.)

2. Legal  
See 1. above

3. Finance  
The Well-being Future Generations Act (2015) requires that we ensure that resources are 
allocated annually to meet our objectives.

5. Risk Management Issues
Key risks are identified for each department and mitigating actions are outlined

6. Staffing Implication  
See Workforce Planning section of the Business Plan (Section 5)

7. Physical Assets
See resources section of each Business Plan (Section 5)

Page 37



CONSULTATIONS
I confirm that the appropriate consultations have taken in place and the outcomes are as detailed below

Signed: Robin Staines                 Head of Housing, Public Protection Care & Support
             Avril Bracey                    Head Mental Health & Learning Disability Service
             Rhian Dawson                Head of Integrated Services
             Chris Harrison                Head of Strategic Joint Commissioning
             Lyn Walters                    Senior Business Support Manager
             Silvana Sauro                 Performance, Analysis and Systems Manager
1.Local Member(s)  - None
2.Community / Town Council - None
3.Relevant Partners - None 
4.Staff Side Representatives and other Organisations  - None 
Section 100D Local Government Act, 1972 – Access to Information
List of Background Papers used in the preparation of this report:
Title of Document File Ref No. Locations that the papers are available for public 

inspection
Well-being of Future Generations 
Act Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015

Carmarthenshire County Council’s 
Well-being Objectives Carmarthenshire County Council's Well-being Objectives

Page 38

../../../../../../Management/Performance%20Management%20&%20Strategic%20Planning/Business%20Planning/2018-19/Departments-Divisions/Scrutiny%20Cover%20sheets/Well-being%20of%20Future%20Generations%20(Wales)%20Act%202015
http://www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/home/council-democracy/consultation-performance/well-being-of-future-generations/our-well-being-objectives.aspx#.WgQlEGe7LIU


 

Page | 1 
 

 

Department for Communities  

Departmental Business Plan for 2018/19 – 

2020/21 

(Draft version to accompany Budget Scrutiny, December 2017) 

 

‘Life is for living, let’s start, live and age well in a 

healthy, safe and prosperous environment’ 

 

 

Page 39



 

Page | 2 
 

The Council’s Core Values 
 

 
Customers First – we put the needs of our citizens at the heart of everything that we do  

Listening – we listen to learn, understand and improve now and in the future  

Excellence – we constantly strive for excellence, delivering the highest quality possible 

every time by being creative, adopting innovative ways of working and taking measured 

risks  

Integrity – we act with integrity and do the right things at all times  

Taking Responsibility – we all take personal ownership and accountability for our actions  

 

Contents 
  Page 

Purpose Foreword and Introduction 3 
1 Departmental Overview 4-9 

2 Strategic Context 10-12 

3 Review and Evaluation 13-18 

4 Departmental Priorities / Risks 19-38 

5 Resources 39-40 

6 Key Departmental Measures 41-45 

7 Appendices 46 

 

 

 

Page 40



 

Page | 3 
 

The purpose of this plan 
 

This departmental business plan has been produced to give staff, customers, and elected 

members and partners a guide to the services provided by the department. It translates 

strategic objectives, to service objectives, to individual staff targets. It provides an open and 

transparent way of showing what is to be achieved and how we plan to do this.  
 

It shows how resources will be used to achieve objectives and the service implications of 

budgetary increases or reductions. It shows what we get for what we spend and if we are 

making the most of what we have.  The plan also aims to demonstrate and provide 

assurance on service standards so that the service can be held to account. 
 

This plan will be supported by more detailed Divisional Plans and Team Plans. 

 

 
 

Sign Off 

Cllr.  Jane Tremlett    
Cl lr .  Linda Evans      
Cl lr .  Peter Hughes Grif f i ths  
Cl lr .  Phi l ip Hughes                               Date:   

 

We have great pleasure in introducing the new Department for Communities Summary 
Business Plan for 2018/21. We are satisfied that this Business Plan provides a 
comprehensive overview of the Departmental performance. It also provides the Department’s 
aims and objectives for 2018/21.  

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 

Executive Board Member Foreword 

 

Cllr. Peter Hughes Griffiths 

Executive Board Member for 

Culture, Sport and Tourism 

 

 

Cllr Jane Tremlett   

Executive Board Member, 

Social Care 

Cllr. Philip Hughes 

Executive Board Member for Public 

Protection 

 

Cllr. Linda Evans 

Executive Board Member 

for Housing 

Page 41



 

Page | 4 
 

 
 

 
As we go into a new financial year we go from a position of 
strength with regard to the quality and performance of our 
whole department. Our challenge is to sustain our high levels of 
performance and to continue to implement policies and 
programmes that will in time secure progression in outcomes 
for the wellbeing of the people of Carmarthenshire. 
 
Our Business Plans for 2018/2019 sets out an exciting 

programme of service activity and development. The main headlines of our ambition are 

summarised here in this departmental overview, with more detailed actions and objectives 

set out in more detailed plans at divisional and service level.  

2018/2019 brings new opportunities alongside financial challenges. The newly enacted 

Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 will challenge us to consider the long-

term implications of our services for people and communities and to consider how we can 

support the sustainable development of our communities by prioritising preventative action 

to reduce costs in the long-term whilst raising standards of wellbeing. 

Over the last year we have been preparing for the implementation of the Social Services 
and Wellbeing Act, raising awareness amongst staff and partners and realigning our 
services to respond to the new requirements.  However the Act has provided us with the 
opportunity to develop services which promote wellbeing and independence and build on 
people’s strengths and abilities which can significantly improve outcomes for those who 
use our services.  
 
We have also introduced a new Performance Management Framework to ensure we 
balance the relationship between service demands, the allocation of resources and 
service user satisfaction. The framework has a suite of measures which are monitored at a 
monthly meeting which I chair. Further work is needed in adult services to improve the 
timeliness of reviews of care packages. This is now a key departmental priority.   
 
Demand for adult social care provision is steadily growing across Wales. Historically the 
budget has overspent with requests for services from an ageing population outstripping 
the budgets available. With an over 85 population growing by 3% a year in the county 
there is an inevitability that in the medium to long term we will have to spend more on this 
service area.  
 
A major contribution to managing resources better has been the implementation of our 
commissioning framework for domiciliary care. Carmarthenshire implemented a framework 
for independent providers that ensures a greater emphasis of quality over cost, monitor’s 
providers call duration automatically and enables providers to use the hours more flexibly 
so calls to vulnerable people are not cut short.  
 
We will further increase the supply of extra care and nursing care through the delta lakes 
development, building on the success of the Extra care developments in Ammanford and 
Carmarthen. We are retaining our current in house residential provision whilst considering 
what capital investment will be needed to improve the physical environments. 

1.  Departmental Overview 

Page 42



 

Page | 5 
 

 
We intend to emphasise the opportunities in the county for professional staff to develop 
their language skills as some continue to lack confidence in the use of Welsh and 
frequently self-evaluate their language skills as lower than they are.  
 
Our new information advice and assessment team gives a single number 24 hours a day 
for social care advice and assistance and coupled with the decision to create a dedicated 
out of hours social work service working across children’s and adults will give us the best 
possible chance to get people the right help at the right time.  This will be an extension of 
the social work day services covering the County, including hospitals at weekends.  I am 
confident that we are at the forefront of developments in this area in Wales.      
 
Adult Safeguarding is a priority and over the last year we have invested in a new structure 
for this service to improve response times and ensure that we have the capacity to prevent 
the abuse of vulnerable people. This has been a successful programme of change with 
improved response times enabling us to be confident that the most vulnerable people in 
the community are safer than ever. 
 
Over the next year it is essential that we lay the foundations for delivering and developing 
services that places those who use our services and their families and carers at the heart 
of the planning process.  
 
Difficult decisions will need to be made within a climate of financial austerity, but the Social 
Services and Wellbeing Act also provides us with opportunities to be more collaborative, 
innovative and creative in finding solutions with those who use our services and within the 
wider community. 
 
The Leisure division has a key role to play in improving the well-being of our population 
through early intervention within the health continuum and throughout the life-course. The 
service aims to ensure that People live healthy, challenged, progressive, and fulfilled lives. 
A key focus for the service in 2018-19 will be to further increase participation and 
attendances, whilst building on health intervention schemes such as the National Exercise 
Referral Scheme.  

 
We are committed to delivering the Carmarthenshire Homes Standard+ and Investing in 
tenants’ homes and providing more homes. Increasing the availability of rented and 
affordable homes.  
 
Finally, mention must be made of the valued contribution of the workforce to delivering a 
high standard of service and their role in making the required improvements and 
efficiencies. I receive many letters of thanks from families, members of the public and 
councillors every week which reflects staff dedication and commitment in delivering 
services every day across the community.  
 
I look forward to another successful year for the Department for Communities services in 
Carmarthenshire  
 
Jake Morgan Director of Community Services 

Page 43



 

Page | 6 
 

 

  

 

 

 

Department for Communities Management Structure 

 

Lyn Walters 
Business Support 

Manager 

 

 Business Support 
all front line teams 

 Collections 

 Payments  

 Transport Section 

 Financial  
assessment team 

 Blue Badge 

 Audit and 
compliance team 

 

Chris Harrison 
Interim Head of 
Strategic Joint 

Commissioning 
(Pembs and Carms) 

 

 Commissioning 
support to Adults 

 Supporting People 

 Prevention and self 

help  

 Building community 

capacity and 

resilience   

 Maximising 

people’s 

independence 

 

Rhian Dawson 
Head of Integrated 

Services  

 Older Persons 

 Physical Disabilities 

 Occupational 

Therapy 

 Residential & 

Nursing Care 

 IAA 

 

Avril Bracey 
Head of Mental 

Health, 
Learning Disability 

Services 
& Safeguarding 

  Mental Health 

 Learning Disability 

 Work & New Skills 

 Substance Misuse 
Services 

 Safeguarding 

 Transition Services 
 

Robin Staines 
Head of Housing, 

Public Protection & 

Care and Support  

 Deliver effective 
Care and Support 
Services 

 Management of 
Residential Care, 
Day Centres and        
In-House 
Domiciliary Home 
Care 

 Public Protection 

 Housing Service 

 

Ian Jones 

Head of Leisure 

 Leisure Centres 

 Health, Fitness, and 

leisure health 

referral schemes 

 Sports 

Development  

 Aquatics  

 Outdoor Recreation  

 Maintenance and 

promotion of Public 

Rights of Way  

 Theatres & Arts 

 Libraries & Archives 

 Museums 

 Archives 

 Theatres 

3. Arts & Galleries 

Jake Morgan 
Director of Community 

Services 

Stefan Smith 
Head of Children’s 

Services 

 

P
age 44



 

Page | 7 
 

The vision for Carmarthenshire….. 
 
The Integrated Community Strategy has a vision for our county which is for a “Carmarthenshire 
that enables people to live healthy and fulfilled lives by working together to build strong, bilingual 
and sustainable communities.” It will achieve this by focusing on five strategic outcomes:  
 

 People in Carmarthenshire are healthier  

 People in Carmarthenshire fulfil their learning potential  

 People who live, work and visit Carmarthenshire are safe and feel safer  

 Carmarthenshire’s communities and environment are sustainable  

 Carmarthenshire has a stronger and more prosperous economy  
 

In varying degrees, our department plays an important role in delivering all of these.  To ensure 

we know how well we are doing in delivering these, the Communities Department has adopted a 

performance management approach to ensure energy and effort is focused.  We will deliver a 

good service by: 

 

 Supporting independence  

 Keeping people safe  

 Promoting health and well being  

 Providing sustainable and efficient services with information, advice and signposting 

 Encouraging people achieve their potential (Workforce and users) 

 Delivering well managed, sustainable, efficient services that contribute to a prosperous 
economy  

 

The Communities Department has five Divisions providing front line services to the people of 

Carmarthenshire and a Business Support Unit and Performance, Analysis & Systems Team that 

assist and provide support to the five divisions in delivering their services. 

 

The Leisure Services Division  

The division has a net budget of around £11.5 million and as a whole employs over 400 staff.  

The Leisure division has a key role to play in improving the well-being of our population through 

early intervention within the health continuum and throughout the life-course. The service aims to 

ensure that people live healthy, challenged, progressive, and fulfilled lives together. We believe 

that people: 

 Value good health & well-being; 

 Value strong families, social interaction and belonging; 

 Are always seeking a greater sense of being and purpose; and 
 Want to learn and progress. 

 

Our service aims are therefore aligned around these key areas. 

 

 

The service is non-statutory in the main, although elements of the service are classed as 

statutory, namely: Library services; elements of Archives and Museums Services, and KS2 

swimming provision for primary schools. 

 

 

Page 45



 

Page | 8 
 

Housing, Public Protection & Care and Support  

The Housing, Public Protection & Care and Support division is made up of around 800 staff and 

has a turnover of £78 million for the Housing Revenue Account (HRA), £32 million for the Council 

Fund and a Capital Programme of £20 million. The division is based in the three main residential 

areas of Ammanford, Carmarthen and Llanelli and serves a population of 183,000 people and over 

83,000 homes across the county.  As a division, we believe we will deliver a good service when it 

meets the following criteria: 

 Providing accurate and timely housing advice  

 Delivering the Carmarthenshire Homes Standard + and increasing the supply of affordable 
homes 

 Protecting individuals from harm and promoting health improvement  

 Ensuring the safety and quality of food chain to minimise risk to humans and animals  

 Promoting a fair and just trading environment for businesses and citizens  

 Improving the local environment to positively influence the quality of life and promote 
sustainability  

 Getting better at what we do  

 Delivering effective care and support services 

Mental Health, Learning Disability Services & Safeguarding  
The division is made up of 267 staff and has a net budget of around £29.5 million. 

The division supports adults with learning disabilities, mental health and people with drug and 

alcohol problems. It also safeguards vulnerable adults and people who lack mental capacity in 

care homes and hospitals. The service also works with disabled children and young people aged 

between 16 and 25 as well as providing day services support to people in need of employment, 

leisure and personal development opportunities.  The Community Inclusion provides and 

develops meaningful day opportunities for adults and young people. 

 

Integrated Services (Older Persons & Physical Disabilities) 
The division employs 143 Council staff and has a net budget of around £29 million from the 

Council Fund. The teams are based in the three defined locality areas of the County namely, 

Tywi /Teifi/Taf (also referred to as the 3Ts) Aman Gwendraeth and Llanelli.  The County has an 

integrated Community Health & Social Care Service ‘infrastructure’. This model aligns with 

national and local policy direction with reference to delivering Integrated Health and Social Care. 

The Service supports older people and people with physical disabilities to maintain their 

independence and wellbeing where and when possible in their own home.  The case for 

integrated care is reinforced by the need to develop whole-system working across health and 

social care to address the complex needs associated with age related co-morbidity and frailty 

(including dementia).  Enquiries to the CRTs are supported by a single point of access for service 

enquiries 'IAA' service and is also complimented by the Integrated Community Equipment Store.   

 

Commissioning Services Division established in 2015, is made up of around 25 

staff and has a budget of approximately £1.3 million. Externally, the department commissions 

over 60 million pounds worth of social care services for adults. This includes care home 

provision, domiciliary care provision (including community based supported living services) day 

care and support provision and a range of third sector preventative service contracts. Significant 

Page 46



 

Page | 9 
 

among these are the care home contracts.  Services provided under the Supporting People, 

Carers and Personalisation (direct payments) agendas also fall under the responsibility of the 

Commissioning Division. 
 

Business Support provides a range of timely, effective and efficient support services to 

all divisions for the Department for Communities, in accordance with corporate standards and the 

principles of continuous improvement. The division is made up of around 80 staff and has a net 

budget of around £2.5 million.  The division covers a diverse and wide range of services on a 

variety of financial and administrative tasks, these include all services relating to payments, 

financial assessments, income collection, audit and compliance, Blue Badge, provision of 

transport in addition to all administrative, democratic and general business support. The provision 

of support services to all sections enables them to efficiently fulfil their duties and discharge their 

responsibilities and functions on behalf of the all frontline services in addition to supporting 

managers with Learning & Development, Operational Training and Performance 

Management.  The division provides a coordinating role on a range of corporate initiatives. In 

order to fulfil this supporting role, the division is structured into several clearly defined areas, 

each with distinct and individual aims and objectives.   

Performance, Analysis & Systems Team provides support for all front line teams 

throughout the Department to continually improve their services.  The team was established in 

2016 and is made up of 9 staff and has a net budget of approximately £240,000. The services 

provided by the team are diverse and range from:  system maintenance, support and training, 

process mapping, collating performance management data, provision of management information 

and scrutiny reports, co-ordinating complaints, access and engagement functions, business 

plans, Well-being Plan/Improvement Plan and Annual Report, risk management, development of 

measures to meet the requirements of the Social Services and Wellbeing Act.  Supporting the 

Performance Management Framework.  The Performance Analysis and Systems Team has been 

established to drive performance information and data across the department and support the 

performance management framework.  

 

Each Division has full Business Plans containing full details within each Service Area 

Links: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 47



 

Page | 10 
 

 
 
2.1 National Well-being Goals 
For the first time in Wales, the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015, provides a 
shared vision for all public bodies to work towards. See Appendix 1 for an ABC guide to the Act. 
 
 

2.2 The Council’s Well-being Objectives (The Council’s Well-being Objectives) 

As a public body subject to the Act, we were required to publish Well-being Objectives that 
maximised our contribution to the National Goals by the 31stMarch 2017.  
 
The Council’s Well-being Objectives are:- 
 
Start Well 

1. Help to give every child the best start in life and improve their early life experiences 
2. Help children live healthy lifestyles 
3. Continue to improve learner attainment for all 
4. Reduce the number of young adults that are Not in Education, Employment or Training 

Live Well 
5. Tackle poverty by doing all we can to prevent it, helping people into work and 

improving the lives of those living in poverty 
6. Creating more jobs and growth throughout the county 
7. Increase the availability of rented and affordable homes 
8. Help people live healthy lives (tackling risky behaviour and obesity) 
9. Supporting good connections with friends, family and communities 

Age Well 
10. Support the growing numbers of older people to maintain dignity and independence in 

their later years 
11. A Council wide approach to supporting Ageing Well in Carmarthenshire 

In a Healthy and Safe Environment. 
12. Looking after the environment now and for the future 
13. Improving the highway and transport infrastructure and connectivity 
14. Promoting Welsh Language and Culture 

In addition a Corporate Objective 
15. Governance and Use of Resources 

 

2.3 The Departments contribution to the Council’s Well-being Objectives:- 

The department has a lead role on the following Objectives:- 

 Increase the availability of rented and affordable homes 
 Help people live healthy lives (tackling risky behaviour and obesity) 
 Supporting good connections with friends, family and communities 
 Support the growing numbers of older people to maintain dignity and independence 

in their later years 
The department will further strengthen the action plans behind these well being Objectives during 

2018/19 by: -    (x refer to Section 4 Action Plan) 

The department makes significant contributions to the following Objectives:- 

 Help to give every child the best start in life and improve their early life experiences 
 Help children live healthy lifestyles 

2.  Strategic Context  

Page 48



 

Page | 11 
 

 Reduce the number of young adults that are Not in Education, Employment or 
Training 

 Tackle poverty by doing all we can to prevent it, helping people into work and 
improving the lives of those living in poverty 

 A Council wide approach to supporting Ageing Well in Carmarthenshire 
 Promoting Welsh Language and Culture 

 
  See Appendix 2    To see how Divisions ‘join-up’ to contribute to each Well-being Objective. 

 

2.4 5 Ways of Working  
  

To comply with the Well-being of Future Generations Act we must demonstrate the following 5 
ways of working: 
 

1. Looking to the long term so that we do not compromise the ability of future 
generations to meet their own needs;  

2. Taking an integrated approach so that public bodies look at all the well-being goals in 
deciding on their priorities;  

3. Involving a diversity of the population in the decisions that affect them;  
4. Working with others in a collaborative way to find shared sustainable solutions;  
5. Understanding the root causes of issues to prevent them from occurring.  

 

2.5       The County of Carmarthenshire’s Well-being Plan – To be published by 

May 2018 

The Well-being of Future Generations Act puts a well-being duty on specified public bodies 

across Carmarthenshire to act jointly and establish a statutory Carmarthenshire’s Public Services 

Board (PSB) Public Services Board. The Carmarthenshire PSB was established in May 2016 

and is tasked with improving the economic, social, environmental and cultural well-being of 

Carmarthenshire. It must do so by undertaking an assessment of well-being in the County and 

then preparing a county Well-being Plan to outline its local objectives 
 

 The assessment looks at well-being in Carmarthenshire through different life stages. The 

key findings can be found at www.thecarmarthenshirewewant.wales 
 

 The PSB must publish a Well-being plan which sets out its local objectives to improving 

the economic, social, environmental and cultural well-being of the County and the steps it 

proposes to take to meet them. The first Carmarthenshire Well-being Plan will be 

published May 2018 
 

The Well-being Objectives of the Carmarthenshire PSB are not intended to address the core 

services and provision of the individual partners, rather they are to enhance and add value 

through collective action. The statutory partners of the PSB (Council, Health Board, Fire & 

Rescue Service and Natural Resources Wales) each have to publish their own Well-being 

Objectives. See Carmarthenshire County Council’s above. 
 

Carmarthenshire PSB’s draft Well-being Objectives are:- 

 Healthy Habits: people have a good quality of life, and make healthy choices about their 

lives and environment  

 Early Intervention: to make sure that people have the right help at the right time; as and 

when they need it 

Page 49

http://www.thecarmarthenshirewewant.wales/
http://www.thecarmarthenshirewewant.wales/
http://www.thecarmarthenshirewewant.wales/


 

Page | 12 
 

 Strong Connections: strongly connected people, places and organisations that are able to 

adapt to change 

 Prosperous People and Places: to maximise opportunities for people and places in both 

urban and rural parts of our county 
 

2.6   Carmarthenshire’s Corporate Strategy 2015-20       
o In September 2015 the Council published its Corporate Strategy and outlined its key 

areas of focus across seven outcome areas. 
o This Strategy will need to be Consolidated with the Well-being Objectives and 

emerging Forward Work Plan for 2017/18 
o The outcomes and focus of the strategy is attached in Appendix 3 

 

2.7     Service Specific Strategies 

Strategies with a clear interlink to the Well-being Act    

Legislation introduced recently that is changing the way we work includes: 

 The Well-being of Future Generations   

(Wales) Act 

 Social Services and Well-being (Wales) Act 2014 

 Housing (Wales) Act 2014 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Page 50

http://www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/media/998105/corporate-strategy.pdf


 

Page | 13 
 

 

Achievements and current strengths  

Leisure Services 

2017/18 was another incredibly busy yet productive year for the Leisure Service. Our Sport and 

Leisure Team continue to go from strength to strength with the acclaimed Young Ambassador 

Scheme being held up as an exemplar activity. The £1m investment in new fitness equipment 

across our sites is paying dividends with income generation paying back the borrowing much 

quicker than anticipated. Aquatics income is also booming with the new 0-4 years ‘Splash’ 

programme complimenting the already burgeoning learn to swim programme. The velodrome in 

Carmarthen Park has been totally refurbished as part of the emerging cycling strategy for the 

County.  

In Cultural Services, we have a new Museums Development Manager in post, with an agreed 

strategy for the service. Plans are well underway to re-develop the Museum in Abergwili with HLF 

funding secured for the Tywi Gateway Historic Gardens Scheme.  Library Services launched their 

fantastic new mobile service taking services to the most rural parts of the County. Library 

standards have improved with the service being seen as one of the best in the UK. A new 

Archive is being tendered to house the fantastic County Collection currently housed in the 

Glamorgan and Richard Burton Archives in Cardiff and Swansea respectively. Plans are well 

underway to stage an annual Cultural Awards celebration, as well as Ammanford and Llansteffan 

hosting the town and village of culture for 2018.  

In the Outdoor Recreation Service, dredging works have been underway at Burry Port Harbour, 

with funding secured for the repair of the listed harbour walls. More and more events continue to 

come to Pembrey Country Park, building on its reputation as one of the best events destinations 

in the UK. Our Caravan and Camping Site is being further developed with on-line booking now 

available to make the customer journey more effective than ever. Plans for a new closed circuit 

cycling track at Pembrey Country Park are developing well, with opening scheduled for summer 

2018.   

New websites and welsh language initiatives are being developed across the service, and huge 

credit must go to our fantastic staff for delivering and developing these services during the most 

challenging of times.   

Housing, Public Protection & Care and Support Services 

We have delivered over 180 new affordable homes as part of our ambitious five year Affordable 

Homes Delivery Plan.  Work is progressing well with establishing a new Local Housing Company. 

This will be a wholly owned subsidiary of the council to help deliver the much needed additional 

affordable housing across the county.    

It is also important that access to existing social housing is as easy as possible. It is with this in 

mind that work is being undertaken on the possibility of moving to a choice based lettings system 

where applicants ‘bid’ for properties. This is in place in a number of other councils and gives 

‘bidders’ a real stake in their new home. This does not change the allocation policy in terms of 

who gets assistance, just how we go about letting the homes.  

 

3.  Review and Evaluation  

Page 51



 

Page | 14 
 

Other work progressing well at the moment is the investment profile into our care homes and the 

future direction of day care services. In terms of the latter, we are looking at how we secure the 

sustainability of day care opportunities by making them more reflective of communities, and how 

they can help enhance community resilience.   

Our Taxi Licensing Team are working with taxi drivers regarding the safeguarding of passengers. 

This is in the news with the withdrawal of the Uber licence in London and again we are one step 

ahead.  After much success in numerous national awards and competitions in 2016, the 

authorities Financial Exploitation Safeguarding Scheme (FESS) has been adopted and replicated 

by 26 local authorities nationwide. Authorities have further agreed to provide data for formal 

academic research into financial abuse in a project run in conjunction with Cardiff University led 

by Carmarthenshire County Councils Trading Standards Services.           

Mental Health, Learning Disability Services & Safeguarding 

We have improved services and support for carers by appointing a carers information and 

assessment officer to raise the profile of carers assessments, work closely with the IAA service 

and the third sector.  The division has been well represented on the health led Mental Health and 

Learning Disability transformation programmes and fully engaged in these projects and 

subsequent consultation.   

The Mental Health Transformation recently won an NHS award for collaboration.  We have 

contributed to the regional Market Position Statement, Local Commissioning Strategy and the 

Local Area Plan.  We have undertaken an accommodation needs survey which is informing 

collaborations/projects with housing and supporting people colleagues.  

We have recruited an accommodation officer to facilitate housing options for people identified by 

the care management teams.  A TIC review in Learning Disability Service Provision has been 

undertaken, this has now moved into implementation stage and will result in an improved model 

of provision.  A review of disability services has also taken place. 

The Safeguarding processes have been redesigned to ensure compliance with the SSWB Act’s 

requirements.  The Local Operational Group is well establishes and well attended by partner 

agencies.  As a result there is greater confidence in the multi-agency approach to safeguarding. 

All senior managers are engaged in formal management development programmes.   All team 

managers have engaged in a bespoke training programme to develop skills in managing people, 

performance and resources. 

Integrated Services (Older Persons & Physical Disabilities) 

 
The More Than Just Words Showcase Event recognises and celebrates the importance of Welsh 

language provision in health and social care services, and the exceptional achievements of 

individuals and teams.  Careline and Dewis Sir Gâr received a special commendation under the 

‘Active Offer’. 

Dewis Sir Gâr has been shortlisted for the Guardian Public Service awards, and that Careline 

and the Technology Enabled Care Service has recently been accredited with the TSA Quality 

Standards Framework.  

 

Page 52



 

Page | 15 
 

Other initiatives that we are leading on are: 

 Introduction of the social prescription scheme based in GP practices which supports 
patients with their overall wellbeing  

 Development of Carmarthenshire is Kind with launch event where over 500 
Carmarthenshire residents attending and was profiled on Radio Wales 

 Introduction of successful pilot to improve services for those living with dementia and 
cognitive impairment which has been identified as a Bevan Exemplar Project.  

 Successful delivery of Carmarthenshire’s United Support Project (CUSP) a third sector 
collaboration that supports people in the community who are on the ‘cusp’ of needing 
support to stay as well as possible for as long as possible 

 The preventative work in Carmarthenshire based on the PEIPIL strategy (Prevention, 
Early Intervention and Promoting Independent Living) identified as good practice in Wales 
through the Bevan Exemplar scheme.  

 In October of this year Llandovery was registered as a Dementia Friendly Community. 

 Introduction of a health Psychology Service which is based in 3T’s CRT but works across 
Carmarthenshire. 

 Transfer of Care Advice and Liaison Service (TOCALS) has expanded in the GGH and 
PPH to include community based Occupational Therapists and Social workers which 
ensures timely discharges. 

 The development of the Complex Review Team to ensure that all people in receipt of a 
service receives a timely review. 

 Frailty Clinic has started in Glangwili General Hospital which sees patients referred from 
the GP cluster in 3T’s to access early diagnostic tests to improve independence and 
maintain well-being.   
 

Commissioning  

The Commissioning Event ran by Carmarthenshire County Council and attendance from 

Assistant Chief Inspector David Francis during March 2017 on the Domiciliary Care 

Commissioning Framework letter of recognition.  The council had arranged the event in response 

to so much interest in in the good practice we had highlighted in our inspection and our 

recognition that Carmarthenshire in our view were the most advanced in taking forward 

sustainable, outcome focussed approaches to commissioning.   

Business Support Unit 

The key achievement for the Business Support Unit was the introduction of a new debt 

management process, a dedicated solicitor has been appointed to pursue Social Care debts. 

This has been fairly successful with aged debt being reduced by more than £400k in the year. 

There has also been an increase in secured debt in the same timeframe, this will put the authority 

in a much better position to recover debt in future years. The division has also begun to invoice 

residents who are in care homes on a more frequent basis, and therefore increasing frequency of 

payments. The division has reduced the fleet of buses, saving money for the department.  The 

division has undertaken a pilot for establishing paperless systems to support the agile and mobile 

working, this will be rolled out within the next financial year as part of the Digital Transformation 

Strategy.        

 

 

Page 53



 

Page | 16 
 

Performance, Analysis & Systems Team 

We have delivered on the management of the overall Performance Management Framework 

2016-17 Departmental Performance Management Framework.  We have taken on the role of co-

ordinating all statutory complaints for Social Care since May 2017.  We have developed a robust 

recording system for all these complaints and compliments and have put in place accurate 

management information reports.  We have undertaken a staff survey for the whole Department 

for Communities in September 2017 and analysed the results.  The team has organised and 

facilitated the People Managers Events held in March and November 2017 on behalf of the 

Director.  Feedback received was very positive and the opportunity to network and understand 

what others are doing in each division has been meaningful to all people managers.  We have 

Co-ordinated and produced the Directors Annual Report for 2016/2017.  We have developed the 

Housing System to accommodate the New Housing Allocation policy and we have developed an 

audit proof recording system for the Affordable Homes Buy Back process.  A Low Cost 

Ownership Waiting list has been created and has been implemented and is currently been 

supported as front end users buy back affordable homes. 

What others say 

The CSSIW have evaluated our services as being generally effective and that: 
 

The local authority continues to benefit from strong leadership across adults and 
children’s services, with good stability and effective support for its workforce’.  

 

 

In our evaluation by the CSSIW for the last year they note that we have made: 
 

Good progress on the implementation of the Social Services and Well-Being (Wales) Act 
(SSWBA), and has placed significant importance and investment on ensuring new ways of 

working are understood by staff and partner agencies and embedded into practice. A project 
board is in place with a clear action plan aligned to the SSWBA, and key milestones have been 
and continue to be achieved.  
 

 

Giving our communities an active offer of language choice in assessment has been a priority and 
I am pleased that our progress has been recognised by the CSSIW where they judge that  

 
The Welsh Government ‘More than Just Words’ framework  

for the use of the Welsh language is being implemented effectively, with measures in 
place to ensure people have access to the services through their language of 

choice. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 54

file://///ntcarmcc/cfp/Adult%20Care/PM%20Framework%20Measures/2.%20Performance%20Framework%20April%20Final%2016.pdf


 

Page | 17 
 

Listening to staff’s views 

A staff survey was circulated during September 2017, the theme this year was communication, 

appraisal and engagement.  Office staff were notified via email and hard copies/information 

distributed to non-office based staff. 

There are 1886 staff within the department and the number of responses received were 653.  

This equates to 35%. 

The number of respondents to the survey who have appraisals has increased by 5% from 2016. 

Our goal is to ensure that everyone receives an appraisal which will benefit individuals, giving 

you clarity on performance, goals and support that may be needed.  We have improved in the 

latest survey with over 80% of staff receiving reviews and it is our ambition that all staff will 

receive an appraisal. 

Developing and supporting our people.  This covers how we recruit, lead, manage, 

retain, support, communicate and develop our people. 

 

Our Statement of Intent 

We want our people to: 

 Be professionally well trained and qualified, responsible and accountable for their actions 

and decisions. 

 Be responsive to change and able to challenge and innovate. 

 Embrace the culture, values and objectives of the department and the council. 

 Have manageable workloads, effective and responsive systems and processes. 

 Be empowered to make informed decisions and manage resources. 

We believe that an effective service has people that: 

 Are valued and respected. 

 Are well trained, appropriately supported and competent. 

 Have clear roles and responsibilities. 

 Maintain manageable workloads. 

 Are motivated and committed. 

 Communicate and share information and knowledge. 

 Are encouraged and supported to make decisions. 

 Base their interventions and service improvement on evidence. 

To strengthen the engagement within the Department two events have been held with 

People Managers in order to communicate key messages on our overall performance.  Where we 

are and what our aims are as a Department.  Discussions on how Well-being and Sustainability 

fits within our Department and what the key priorities are for the Department moving forward.   

Key themes and feedback has been collated and a Well-Being and Sustainability Plan is being 

developed which will be embedded within each divisional business plan. 

 

Page 55



 

Page | 18 
 

Rate Your Division as an Employer 

Following on from the survey and the People Managers Event we asked a question to all staff if 

they would “Rate Your Division as an Employer” to understand their experience working in the 

department and Division.  Instead of asking hundreds of online survey questions and doing in-

depth calculations, we asked one powerful question: 

 

How likely would you be to recommend your division as an employer 

to someone you know? (rate your division by selecting a number 

of stars.           1 = Not at all likely and 10 = Extremely likely. 

 
So far we have had over 500 responses.  Our aim is to reach 1,000 responses in order to then 

have a strong benchmark.  Once we have reached this our intention is to repeat this exercise 

every 6 months to provide the core measurement for staff experience and predicts business 

growth. 

Further Areas for Improvement 

Performance Management Framework has been produced with the involvement of people from 

across the department, to give a clear and concise guide to: 

 Our key objectives and priorities 
 What we believe a good service looks like to us 
 Our priorities for delivering a good service 
 How we will use performance measures to continually improve 

 
We have developed our approach to managing performance to ensure we balance the 
relationship between service demands, the allocation of resources and service user 
satisfaction. We will use measures to ensure we do the right thing and drive continuous 
improvement. Through this guide Managers and staff are clear about where they fit into this 
approach. 
 
This approach will ultimately drive improvement and result in improved outcomes for service 
users.  It will be managed through a monthly performance meeting chaired by the Director of 
Community Services. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 56



 

Page | 19 
 

 
 
We must take all reasonable steps (in exercising functions) to maximise our contribution to the 7 Well-
being Goals 
 *SEP Strategic Equality Plan 2016-20 
 *WBO Well-being Objectives and Well-being Plan 

 

Leisure Services Division 

Ref Service Priorities 
With Key Actions and Key Outcome Measures 

By When By Who 

 Service Head   

1 Health intervention and well-being plan established March 2019 Ian Jones 

2 Sickness absence and HR management review undertaken  March 2019 Ian Jones 

3 Property maintenance and improvement review undertaken  March 2019 Ian Jones 

4 Develop plans for new Llanelli Wellness Hub (Leisure Centre) as 
part of Wellness village and life sciences hub at Delta Lakes 

March 2019 Ian Jones 

5 Assist with delivery of Parc Howard masterplan, working closely 
with Environment dept. and key stakeholders 

March 2019 Ian Jones 

6 Feed into Pendine local regeneration master plan, including 
provision for Museum of Speed, and Outdoor Recreation  

March 2019 Ian Jones 

7 Implement Cycling Strategy for Carmarthenshire to include focus 
on: Events; Development and Infrastructure 

March 2018 Ian Jones 

 Business and Project Manager    

1 Robust performance management reporting system in place 
across the division 

May 2018 Richard 
Stradling 

2 Customer care review undertaken for division March 2019 Richard 
Stradling 

3 Marketing and communication review undertaken for division March 2019 Richard 
Stradling 

4 Undertake Health and Wellbeing departmental staff pilot and 
continue to provide a corporate resource  

June 2019 Richard 
Stradling 

5 Look to develop a training matrix for employees based on their 
job description 

March 2019 Richard 
Stradling 

6 Manage Workplace health champion to effect change in physical 
activity levels of staff and adults on a sustainable basis 

March 2018 Richard 
Stradling 

7 Pro-active H&S management with ongoing site / service reviews 
throughout the year  

March 2018 Richard 
Stradling 

8 Work with TIC team and Service managers to effect 
improvements in service delivery and performance across the 
Leisure division.  

March 2018 Richard 
Stradling 

 Outdoor Recreation Services    

1 Review of management arrangements at Burry Port Harbour May 2018 Neil 
Thomas/ 
Ian Jones 

2 Repair of Harbour Walls at BP Harbour March 2019 Neil 
Thomas 

3 Parking review completed across Country Parks April 2018 Neil 
Thomas 

4.  Departmental Priorities 

Page 57

http://www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/media/1883679/Strategic-Equality-AP-2016-2020.pdf
file://///ntcarmcc/cfp/Management/Well-being%20of%20Future%20Generations/Individual%20public%20body%20role/Council's%20Well-being%20Objectives/17-18%20WB%20Objectives%20document/FINAL%20WBO%20PLAN/CCC%20WBO%20PLAN%2017-18%20FINAL.docx
http://www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/media/1846300/-CCC-WBO-PLAN-17-18-FINAL.pdf


 

Page | 20 
 

4 Review outdoor events strategy for the County, linking with 
Tourism, co-ordinating the bid to stage Grand Depart of Tour of 
Britain Cycle Race 2018  

September 
2018 

Neil 
Thomas 

5 Development of £160k Carmarthen Wetlands gateway scheme December 
2018 

Neil 
Thomas 

6 Complete £2m capital investment into Pembrey Country Park, to 
include: 

 New Amenity block at PCP caravan site 

 Upgrade comms links to PCP 

 New restaurant and activity centre 

New automated entrance barrier system 

July 2018 Neil 
Thomas 

 Sports and Leisure services    

1 Launch a complete ‘Actif Sir Gar’ website to maximise promotion 
of Sport & Leisure services provided in facilities and in the 
community, and to increase online membership sales and 
bookings. 

May 2018 Carl 
Daniels 

2 Ensure the workforce meets the needs of an expanding sector 
through by reviewing and implementing appropriate structures 
such as aquatics, Actif Club. 

September 
2018 

Carl 
Daniels 

3 Increase activity opportunities and take-up in facilities through 
innovation and investment such as new spin studio and play 
centre in Carmarthen, Activity tower in Pembrey Ski & Activity 
Centre. 

July 2018 Carl 
Daniels 

4 Develop and deliver strategic plans for new focus sports: 
Aquatics, Athletics, Cycling, Triathlon to maximise impact. 

March 2019 Carl 
Daniels 

5 Improve the customer experience at our facilities through the 
delivery of a robust ‘Service Improvement’ strategy using 
international benchmarking standard ‘Net Promoter Score’ to 
monitor customer satisfaction. 

March 2019 Carl 
Daniels 

Carl 
Daniels 

6 Review and implement an improved pathway of aquatics 
provision that enables participants to reach their full potential. 

April 2018 Carl 
Daniels 

7 Create and implement an ‘Actif Accreditation’ quality assurance 
mark for community sports clubs in order to analyse and 
strengthen the sporting infrastructure. 

February 
 2018 

Carl 
Daniels 

8 Ensure a range of targeted physical activity interventions are put 
in place across the life course to increase the activity levels of 
those who are inactive or at risk of becoming inactive. 

March 2018 Carl 
Daniels 

9 Further develop National Exercise Referral Scheme (NERS) March 2018 Carl 
Daniels 

 Cultural Services    

1 
 

Launch the Stordy Digidol digital project widening access to our 
collections and cultural services.  
 

June 2018 Jane 
Davies 

2 
 

Continued implementation of the Libraries Development Plan 2017 
– 2022 with continuous improvement review in order to maintain 
excellent framework standards. 
 
Work with colleagues in customer services to deliver targeted 
services to rural communities through the mobile library service 

March 2019 Jane 
Davies 

Page 58



 

Page | 21 
 

and provide a network of digital access points for services such 
as universal credit.  

3 Implementation of the Museums Vision and Strategic Plan 2017 – 
2022 and as part of that plan 

- Complete a review of the staffing structure; 
- Build on the feasibility study for the collections centre 

securing an appropriate site and funding for the scheme; 
- Develop a masterplan for the County Museum and as part 

of its implementation continue with the work of the Joint 
Operational Group with the Tywi Gateway Trust in the 
delivery of the £1.6m HLF funded Tywi Gateway scheme at 
the Bishops Park; 

- Contribute to the development of the Parc Howard 
masterplan. 

 

 
 

June 2018 
March 2019 

 
March 2019 

 
 
March 2019 

 

Jane 
Davies 

4 Deliver the plans for the transformation of Carmarthenshire 
Archive Service and its reinstatement at Carmarthen Library 

March 2019 Jane 
Davies 

5 Obtain approval for the Theatres and Arts Strategic Plan 2017 – 
2022 and as part of that plan 

- Review for further consideration the options for 
development at Oriel Myrddin; 

- Review of Y Gat 
- Complete and implement the review of the theatres 

structure 

Achieve full occupancy ay Ffwrnes Fach 

June 2019 
 

September 
2019 

March 2019 
June 2018 

March 2019 

Jane 
Davies 

6 Celebrate Carmarthenshire’s Culture through the establishment of 
an annual Cultural Awards event and by supporting the 
development of the Town & Village of Culture. 

June 2018 Jane 
Davies 

 

 

Risks 

 

 Public, staff and participant safety, especially around water areas is a key consideration for 

the service.   

 Continuing political and public support as to the value and impact of Leisure is essential in 

order to develop such a critical yet largely non-statutory service such as leisure. 

 The service has to deliver what people want. Understanding customer demand and 

adapting to meet these challenges are a key risk for the service 

 Unforeseen increases in energy costs.  External factors such as the weather can also affect 

income in Outdoor Recreation facilities 

 Maintaining a strong and positive public perception of services is essential in income 

generating areas where there is competition from the private sector 

 

 

Page 59



 

Page | 22 
 

Housing, Public Protection & Care & Support Services 
 

 

Re
f 

Service Priorities 
With Key Actions and Key Outcome Measures 

By When By Who 

 Service Head   

1 Complete the restructure of the division June 2018 Robin 
Staines 

2 Reduce sickness within the division March 2018 Robin 
Staines 

3 Ensure the Welsh Language standards are embedded in the 
division 

March 2019 Robin 
Staines 

4 Support the agile working agenda across the division March 2019 Robin 
Staines 

5 Ensure the division responds to health, well-being and 
sustainability 

Ongoing Robin 
Staines 

 Care and Support Services   

1 Deliver an investment programme for Care Homes and 
Sheltered Housing Schemes to upgrade to defined standards 
that meet the future care and support needs. 

March 2019 Jonathan 
Morgan 

2 Review service models in line with any revised commissioning 
arrangements for  Domiciliary, Care Home and Day Centre 
Services 

March 2019 Robin 
Staines 

3 Prepare for the implementation of the Regulation and 
Inspection of Social Care (Wales) Act   

March 2019 Robin 
Staines 

4 Develop new service models to further support dementia care 
both in the community and in long term placement 

March 2018 Robin 
Staines 

5 Review IT systems and equipment to assist transformation of 
services                                        

December 
2018 

Gareth 
Miller 

6 Complete a review and service transformation plan for day care 
services 

March 2018 Robin 
Staines 

 Engagement and Partnership   

1 Develop and produce a digital service plan to support residents 
to access online services 

May 2018 Les James 

2 Under the Renting Homes Act review and issue new tenancy 
agreements for Council tenants. 

April 2019 Les James 

3 With our tenants develop a new vision of tenant involvement and 
engagement 

September 
2018 

Les James 

4 Survey all our garage sites to ensure they are fit for purpose, 
and producing local action plans for each site 

May 2018 Les James 

5 Specify and introduce a new grounds maintenance (grass 
cutting) contract so that if reflects what matters to our tenants 

December 
2018 

Les James 

6 Prepare and understand for the Introduction of Universal Credit 
to mitigate the impact on our tenants 

March 2018 Jonathan 
Willis 

7 Develop and introduce a range of options which rewards 

tenants who look after their home 

October 
2018 

Les James 

Page 60



 

Page | 23 
 

8 
 

Introduce a scheme targeting those in fuel poverty by installing 
energy efficient LED lighting to tenants’ homes, which together 
with other schemes, will help to alleviate fuel poverty. 

March 2019 Jonathan 
Morgan 

9 Engage with tenants and key partners to get their views on 
potential improvements to the CHS+ 

March 2019 Les James 

10 Promote the results from the Health Impact Study March 2020 Les James  

 Advice and Tenancy Support Team   

1 
 

Deliver commitments outlined in the Affordable Housing Five 
Year Plan  
-Bring back 50 more empty homes a year as affordable housing 
-Develop our in-house Social Letting Agency so we manage 50 
new properties a year 
Actions linked to Well-being Objective Plan 7– 

- Increase the number of homes managed through the 
Council’s Social Lettings Agency 

- We will work with property owners and bring empty 
homes back into use 

March 2019 Jonathan 
Willis 
 
 
 
 
 

2 Review in conjunction New Homes Team and RSL partners the 
process of letting social housing  

April 2018 Jonathan 
Willis 

3 Develop a new Homelessness Strategy to include:  

 Develop housing options for single people 

 Develop a plan to ensure homeless people have access 
to health services 

 Review our approach to how we manage temporary 
accommodation 

December 
2018 

Jonathan 
Willis 

4 Develop an approach for targeted area housing improvement 
including identifying opportunities from the Swansea Bay 
Region 

March 2019 Jonathan 
Morgan 

5 Evaluate local lettings policies and proposals of any 
amendments  

September 
2018 

Jonathan 
Willis 

6 Introduce a package of support and advice designed to support 
new tenants maintain their tenancies 

March 2019 Jonathan 
Willis 

 Income and Investment Team   

1 Confirm the detailed Business Plan for Local Housing Company. June 2018 Jonathan 
Morgan 

2 Complete the review of HRA spending and costs September 
2018 

Jonathan 
Morgan 

3 Undertake a review to determine the present condition of care 
homes and sheltered housing, highlighting future investment 
priorities to meet future care & support needs of older people        

September 
2018 

Jonathan 
Morgan 

4 Develop a new approach to better understand future housing 
and accommodation needs, particularly in rural areas and for 
specific client groups 

March 2019 Jonathan 
Morgan 

5 
 

Deliver the affordable home delivery plan (March 2019)  

Actions linked to Well-being Objective Plan 7 – 
- We will increase the Council Social Housing stock by 

buying private sector homes 

- We will work with our Housing Association Partners to 

maximise Welsh Government Grant opportunities and 

March 2019 Jonathan 
Morgan 
 
 

Page 61



 

Page | 24 
 

increase the supply of homes where they are most 

needed 

- We will increase the Council’s Housing Stock by building 

new Council Homes 

- We will maximise the opportunities for increasing the 

supply for affordable homes through the LDP (Local 

Development Plan) by providing new homes on site or 

by the use of commuted sums 

 Environmental Protection   

1 We will continue to monitor air quality (nitrogen dioxide) for the 
residents of and visitors to the County. This will be carried out 
by regular assessments and, where necessary, sampling 
programmes 

March 2019 Sue Watts 

2 We will develop and agree Air Quality Management Area 
Action plans for both Llanelli and Carmarthen and initiate 
implementation 

March 2019 Sue Watts  

3 Work collaboratively with Swansea University to agree a project 
plan to monitor the health effects as part of the action plan 
implementation. Additionally, attempts will be made to liaise 
with local schools to raise awareness of air pollution and 
instigate changes in school journey behaviours. 

March 2019 Sue Watts  

4 Monitor private water supplies to ensure safety for the residents 
in Carmarthenshire. The service will explore the possibility of 
extending the programme to testing for the presence of radon 
and remediation as necessary. 

March 2019 Sue Watts  

5 Explore the possibility of assessing radon levels within Local 
housing stock (and remediate as necessary) to map the current 
picture of levels within Carmarthenshire.   

March 2019 Sue Watts 

6 Integration of the food elements within Public Protection to 
provide a ‘farm to fork’ ethic. 

March 2019 Sue Watts 

7 Work to encourage businesses to attain a Food Hygiene rating 
of 3 or above 

March 2019 Sue Watts 

8 Explore the opportunity for implementing Primary Authority 
Principal and provision of tailored advisory services at a cost to 
the businesses 

March 2019 Sue Watts 

9 Implement the monitoring of shellfish in accordance with Welsh 
Government and Food Standards Agency to ensure that the 
beds satisfy standards for commercial gathering. 

March 2019 Sue Watts 

10 Explore the possibility of extending the current Pest Control 
services from Council stock to commercial contracts and private 
dwelling treatments  

March 2019  

11 Prepare for the implementation of the relevant section of the 
Public Heath (Wales) Act in relation to the registration and 
licensing of skin treatments, Health Impact Assessments and 
extension of smoking restricted areas. 

March 2019 Sue Watts 

12 Integration of the teams to monitor and remediate Anti-Social 
Behaviour issues neutral tenure  

March 2019 Sue Watts 

13 We will produce information relating to noise control that is 
readily available for developers to assist in their Planning 
application process. We will explore the possibility of providing 
an advisory service where further, in depth information may be 
requested, the cost of which will be borne by the developer. 

March 2019 Sue Watts 

Page 62



 

Page | 25 
 

14 We will work with partners that are delivering the Wellness and 
Life Science village at Delta Lakes to ensure that the risks from 
potential land contamination are fully addressed and mitigated 
where necessary. 

March 2021 Sue Watts 

 Business and consumer affairs Team   

1 
 

Promoting financial literacy and protecting vulnerable people 
from financial fraud through the FESS scheme   

March 2019 Roger 
Edmunds 

2 Deliver the current national Trading Standards and Animal 

Health enforcement priorities for Wales and UK 

March 2019 Roger 
Edmunds 

3 Develop further partnership arrangements in respect to financial 

exploitation  

March 2019 Roger 
Edmunds 

4 Develop marketing and commercial boundaries with regard to 

income generation  

March 2019 Roger 
Edmunds 

5 Ensuring the promotion of product safety through advice and 

guidance to local businesses  delivered via web site   

March 2019 Roger 
Edmunds 

6 
 

We will further develop Money Wise web resource in order to 

enhance income generation develop product and market it 

March 2019 Roger 
Edmunds 

7 
 

Implement proceeds of crime across regulatory services to 
protect people 
 

March 2019 Roger 
Edmunds 

8 Developing and increasing partnership approach to Licensing 
activity within the Council 

March 2019 Roger 
Edmunds 

 

 

Risks 
 

 Maintain the Carmarthenshire Homes Standard (CHS) in the future 

 Deliver the affordable homes plan 

 Mitigate the effects of welfare reform and introduction of universal credit 
 Ensure quality and adequate supply of Housing within the County 
 Ensuring that the Authority effectively manages its financial resources and respond to the 

challenges of reduced funding 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Page 63



 

Page | 26 
 

 

Mental Health, Learning Disability Services & Safeguarding 

Division 
 

 
 
 

Ref 
Service Priorities 

With Key Actions and Key Outcome Measures 
By When#1 By Who 

1 Develop a strategy and delivery plan to reduce the number of 
individuals in residential care 

March 
2019 

Mark 
Evans/Kelvin 

Barlow 

2 Review social work resource to increase mental health, 
safeguarding and learning disability response at the point of 
entry 

September 
2018 

Mark Evans 

3 Continue to embed the performance management culture and 
budget management within operational teams 

December 
2018 

Senior 
Managers 

4 Contribute to health led transformation programmes in mental 
health and redesign of services within learning disability 

December 
2018 

Mark Evans 

5 Review third sector contracts to establish compliance with the 
SSWB Act and service transformation in mental health and 
learning disability 

July 2018 Mark Evans 

6 Embed a person centred approach to safeguarding which 
ensures the service user is heard and central in decision making 

March 
2019 
 

Cathy 
Richards 

7 To implement a robust strategy for successfully managing new 
and historical DOLS applications 

March 
2019 
 

Cathy 
Richards 

8 We will ensure that young people and adults have equal access 
to education, training, work and leisure opportunities 

November 
2018 

Sharon Frewin 

9 Collaborate with colleagues in commissioning and housing in 
order to increase the range of accommodation options 

March 
2019 

Mark 
Evans/Kelvin 

Barlow 

10 We will ensure that Community resilience will be a key objective 
of the Learning Disability day service transformation plan. This 
will include new models for service delivery 

September 
2018 

Sharon Frewin 

11 Increase Direct Payments and use of citizen directed 
cooperatives at operational, commissioning and contracting 
levels 

March 
2019 

All Senior 
Managers 

12 Increase capacity of Shared Lives and develop Home Share pilot March 
2019 

Sharon Frewin 

13 To Review and implement updated safeguarding arrangements 
to ensure a consistent response to Adult at Risk reports both 
locally and regionally 
 

March 
2019 

Cathy 
Richards 

14 Review Structure of teams e.g. Intake/front door. 
Gathering data to forecast and respond to demand to assist with 
planning 
 

March 
2019 

All Senior 
Managers 

15 Develop the strength based approach in SW teams March 
2019 

All Senior 
Managers 

Page 64



 

Page | 27 
 

 

Risks  

 
 Outcomes for young people and service capacity will be compromised if we do not have a 

seamless pathway from transition into adult care 

 Not delivering on savings will impact on future service provision 

 Individuals will not be safeguarded and a risk of legal challenge and financial penalty if we 
do not manage the DOLs referrals  

 Outcomes for individuals will be compromised and a risk of duplication and loss of funding if 
we do not collaborate with partner 

 Individuals will not be safeguarded or independence promoted if assessments and reviews 
are not completed 

 The number of adults going into residential care will increase and there will be an impact on 
financial savings if we do not develop alternative community provision 

 There will be over provision/poor outcomes for individuals if care/support plans and service 
delivery plans are not person centred and outcome focussed 

 A risk exists that the authorities (as a key partner) could be liable to repay significant 
amounts of grant funding to the area planning board for substance misuse with no prospect 
of recovering those amounts from third parties 
 

  

Page 65



 

Page | 28 
 

 

Integrated Services (Older Persons & Physical Disabilities) 
Division 
 

Ref 
Service Priorities 

With Key Actions and Key Outcome Measures 
By When By Who 

1 
 

To identify the strengths and resources within communities  
which can contribute to promoting and supporting the health 
and wellbeing of their population and to implement into core 
practice and function of the Divisional service area 

March 2019 Julia 
Wilkinson 

2 To implement the Codes of Practice within the  Social Services 
& Well-being Act to all relevant service areas 

March 2019 Jayne 
Thomas 

3 To develop our monitoring platform and business model to 
implement a TEC strategy that will deliver improved outcomes 
for our population  

March 2019 Sam 
Watkins 

4 
 

We will continue to develop and implement how we provide 
information, advice and assistance (IAA), ensuring information 
is available and easily accessible, and linking with the Dewis 
system 

April 2019 Sam 
Watkins 

5 
 

To conduct a more detailed population needs assessment at a 
locality level within the 3 Locality areas 

 TTT – Carmarthen Area 
 Aman Gwendraeth Area 
 Llanelli Area 

This will provide a more detailed understanding what the 
population needs are and will allow planning of health and 
social care services at Locality Level and will consider the key 
objectives outlined in our ‘model of delivery’ section  in the 
business plan 

April 2019 Locality 
Managers  

6 
 
 

To continue to promote the Welsh language and ensure 
compliance with the ‘Active Offer’ across all service areas 

March 2019 Rhian 
Dawson 

7 
 

We will continue to modernise our workforce to support 
implementation of the duties under the SSWBA and the 
objectives outlined in ‘Carmarthenshire’s Vision for 
Sustainable Services for Older People for the Next Decade’ 
and the Health Board’s Integrated Medium Term Plan – this 
will be a core component of Service Priority 4 in this business 
plan (see above) 

April 2019 Rhian 
Dawson 

8 
 

To continue to effectively monitor our care commissioning 
practice using effective professional and performance 
management to improve outcomes at both individual and 
organisational level (includes Unscheduled Care) 

March 2019 Locality 
Managers 

9 To manage the risks associated with outstanding reviews and 
DoLS applications 

April 2018 Jayne 
Thomas 

10 
 

To  monitor the impact of our realigned intermediate care 
pathway on individual outcomes and organisational resource  

April 2018 Rhian 
Dawson  

11 
 

To implement actions within the Regional Dementia plan in 
line with the findings of the Older People’s Commissioner 
report “More than just Memory Loss” 

April 2019 Julia 
Wilkinson 

Page 66



 

Page | 29 
 

12 To ensure compliance with Part 9 of the SSWBA specifically in 
relation to ‘pooled funds’ with care homes and to explore other 
opportunities for ‘pooled funds’ e.g intermediate care services 

November 
2018 

Rhian 
Dawson 

 
 

Risks  
 

 

 Not delivering on financial efficiencies will compromise our ability to deliver future services 

and progress the modernisation agenda 

 Failure to respond in a timely manner to "Careline" contact calls could result in 

compromised client safety 

 There will be over provision and sub optimal outcomes for individuals if care and support 

plans are not person centred and outcome focused 

 Effective Management of demand for Social Care (Adults & Children) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Page 67



 

Page | 30 
 

Commissioning Services Division 

 

Re
f 

Service Priorities 
With Key Actions and Key Outcome Measures 

By When By Who 

1 To develop an overarching strategic commissioning document  
to guide commissioning policy and practice 

To develop a Dementia Strategy with Health/”More than just 
memory loss”  

To develop a Learning Disability Commissioning Strategy  

To develop a Physically Disability/Sensory Impairment 
Commissioning Strategy    

December 
2018 

Neil 
Edwards 

2 To continue to deliver savings through right size packaging and 
analysis of cost providers in the pan disability service areas as 
part of the Authority’s budget management. (Risk) 

To implement a supported living capped rate for the supported 
living sector 
To review high cost residential placements in a co-ordinated and 
effective manner 
To develop a system of accountability whereby care providers 
account for the delivery of care hours 
To undertake a series of high level contract negotiations to 
obtain financial savings 
To complete the accommodation care and support needs project 
to assist future strategic planning 
To drive change and culture working in partnership with the 
Assessment and care Management Teams 

March 
2019 

Trevor 
Stainsby/ 

Neil 
Edwards 

3 To help people to recover so they are able to live as 
independently as possible 

To refine and improve performance of the Reablement service 
To support the development of assistive technology to support 
people’s independence 
 

March 
2019 

Chris 
Harrison 

4 To promote health and wellbeing by building community capacity 
and developing preventative services (Risk) 
To further develop a preventative model of service building on 
regional work with the sector 
To continue to build effective working relationships with third 
sector organisations to maximise their potential in meeting the 
requirements of the SSWB Act 2014  

March 
2019 

Chris 
Harrison 

5 To drive Service Improvement and Quality Assurance 
To ensure compliance with the safeguarding provisions of the 
Act 2014 by working effectively with the Safeguarding service 
To develop, implement and review the Regional Quality 
Assurance Framework 
To engage with care providers in the development and 
consolidation of an accountable, risk competent and safe culture 
that safeguards service users and encourages  learning 
To run strategic fora between commissioner and provider to 
ensure clear understanding of both parties’  respective positions 
and achieve service improvement 

Septembe
r 2018 

Neil 
Edward 

Page 68



 

Page | 31 
 

To undertake health and safety audits in the learning disability 
and mental health care home sector and support introduction of 
the National Framework Agreement 
To develop a programme of “meaningful outcomes” audits for 
care homes for older people 
 

6 To undertake a whole system design analysis of the 
commissioning of domiciliary care with specific focus on: 

Interface with hospital discharge planning and reablement 
The pathway process 
Market management of the independent sector  
Workforce development 
Continuing emphasis on outcomes focussed work including 
dementia project 
 
To prepare a procurement approach to community based 
services 
 

December 
2019 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
September 
2018 

Neil 
Edwards/ 

Alison 
Watkins 

7 To further develop and implement within Supporting People 
(Risk): 

Re-tendering of substance misuse services. This to be done as a 
regional exercise with Pembrokeshire and Ceredigion 

Re-tendering of services for offenders. This to be done as a 
regional exercise with Pembrokeshire 

Young people services procurement exercise 

Re-tendering of services for women suffering domestic abuse. 
This to be considered as a regional exercise with Pembrokeshire 
and Ceredigion 

Developing new services from gap analysis work as identified by 
local authority strategic leads and service providers. 

 

 

December 
2018 

Neil 
Edwards/ 

Alun 
Jones 

8 To consolidate and develop services for carers in 
Carmarthenshire:   

 
To review and develop further a carers strategy for 
Carmarthenshire which will continue to implement the 
Carmarthenshire Carers Action Plan and maintain an open 
reporting framework on progress with the relevant bodies 
The development of a new regional strategy across HDUHB 
To develop further the CISS Outreach and advocacy for carers 
To improve the quality of Carers Assessments. 

 

April 2019 
 

Jon Rees 

9 To develop a joint strategic approach between commissioning 
and workforce development with the development of a strategic 
workforce development plan 

September 
2018 

Neil 
Edwards 

10 To ensure commissioning processes and commissioned 
services comply with the recently introduced Welsh Language 
Standards, in particular the “Active Offer”. 

September 
2018 

Neil 
Edwards 

Page 69



 

Page | 32 
 

11 To develop an overarching strategic commissioning document  
to guide commissioning policy and practice 

To develop a Dementia Strategy with Health/”More than just 
memory loss”  

To develop a Learning Disability Commissioning Strategy  

To develop a Physically Disability/Sensory Impairment 
Commissioning Strategy    

December 
2018 

Neil 
Edwards 

 

Risks 

 Achieve our priority based budgeting efficiency savings targets 

 Achieve compliance with the requirements of the SSWBA 

 Avoid market failure 

 Respond to reduction in Supporting People grant funding and comply with grant 

requirements 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Page 70



 

Page | 33 
 

Business Support Service Division 

Ref 
Service Priorities 

With Key Actions and Key Outcome Measures 

By 
When 

By Who 

1 To build on the success of the pilot which was undertaken in 
2017-18, and introduce paperless systems and processes into 
both frontline and central teams to support the Digital 
Transformation Strategy. 

March 
2019 

Rhys 
Page/Helen 

Smith 

2 To review the key processes and update the documentation to 
ensure it reflects practice. 

March 
2019 

Rhys 
Page/Helen 

Smith 

3 To review debt management arrangements and to ensure that 
debts are properly secured, and that debt recovery 
arrangements are effective. 

March 
2019 

Rhys 
Page/Delyth 

Davies 

4 Develop and implement arrangements to provide 6 monthly 
statements to all residents having entered into a Deferred 
Payment agreement as required by the Social Services and 
Well-being (Wales) Act 2014 or any resident deferring payment 
against a property. 

March 
2019 

Rhys 
Page/Delyth 

Davies 

5 To review billing frequency for those service users in care 
homes, and establish an electronic and automated process by 
which service users are invoiced for residential care charges. 

March 
2019 

Rhys 
Page/Delyth 

Davies 

6 To explore and develop how electronic claims submitted as 
part of the domiciliary care framework process can also be 
used as to calculate the charge for the service users. 

March 
2019 

Rhys 
Page/Tracy 

Lewis 

7 To review how clients’ money is managed, and explore which 
different forms of cashless technology could be used by 
service users.  

March 
2019 

Rhys 

Page/Tracy 

Lewis 

8 To ensure that the financial effect of transferring services 
funded by WILG in to core services is properly detailed to 
ensure that the allocation of funds to CCC by Welsh 
Government is maximised for the benefit of service users in 
Carmarthenshire.   

March 
2019 

Rhys 

Page/Tracy 

Lewis 

9 Develop a suite of performance measures that will assist us in  
evaluating and managing continuous improvement within the  
Transport service. 

March 
2019 

Rhys 
Page/Richard 

Davies 

Risks  

 Staff turnover and delays in appointing to vacancies will impact on the ability to deliver on 

the priorities 

 Changes to community services and future structure of Provider Services may delay 

decisions on vehicle replacement/renewal impacting on service delivery by the Transport 

Unit 

 Allocate funding for property repairs and maintenance is insufficient to respond to current 

need 

 Not completing care management reviews of WILG service users, will mean that we fail to 

achieve our priorities. 

  

Page 71



 

Page | 34 
 

Performance Analysis & Systems Team 
 

Ref 
Service Priorities 

With Key Actions and Key Outcome Measures 
By When By Who 

 Performance Analysis & Systems Manager   

1 Co-ordinate and produce Annual Reports July 2018 Silvana Sauro 

2 
Develop and introduce a Well-being and Sustainability 
Plan 

March 
2018 

Silvana Sauro 

3 
Produce and co-ordinate Sickness data across the 
department 

July 2018 Silvana Sauro 

 Communication and Engagement   

1 
Develop, circulate and analyse the departments staff 
survey   

November 
2018 

Amy Jones 

2 
Co-ordinate and facilitate the Departments Staff 
Engagement events and ratings 

March 
2018 

Amy Jones 

3 
Update internal websites for Social Care and manage the 
Council File Plan for Social Care 

Ongoing Amy Jones 

4 Co-ordinate all Business Plans for the Department 
March 
2018 

Amy Jones 

 Information and Analysis   

1 
Maintenance of PIMS.  Update Actions & Measures and 
co-ordinate all Well-being Objective Actions for the 
department and the improvement plan/well-being plan 

 Amy Jones 

2 

Co-ordinate and produce the Performance Management 
Framework report. 
Production of ad hoc management information reports. 
Provide and co-ordinate performance data for Monthly 
Members Briefings for Housing, Public Protection and 
Service Provision. 

March 
2018 

Team 

3 
WG Quantative Performance Data Returns 
WG Aggregate Data Collection Returns 
WG Qualitative Performance Measures 

March 
2018 

Mark 
Bryant/Amy 

Jones 

4 
Provision of management information for departmental 
FOIA     requests   

Ongoing Team 

5 
Review and reflect by capturing data on lessons learnt 
through the statutory complaints and compliments for 
Social Care 

November 
2018 

Mark Bryant 

 Systems   

1 

Implement Care & Support IT system (CM2000) system 
following procurement.  This will involve system 
configuration, data migration, new technology roll out, 
training of staff and configuring of new performance 
measures.  Phase 2 will cover integration with payroll, 
resource link and carefirst. 

April 2019 
Jonathan 
Davies 

2 
Develop APP to introduce new risk rating schemes for 
Trading Standards. Including Data migration from old 
scheme to new and retraining of service. 

September 
2018 

Jonathan 
Davies 

3 Upgrade of the OHMS and App systems 
March 
2019 

Jonathan 
Davies 

4 
Implement Choice Based Lettings.  This will be a third 
party model integrated with the OHMS system and 
corporate website. 

April 2018 
Jonathan 
Davies Page 72



 

Page | 35 
 

5 
Support frontline service with effective management 
information on Universal Credit implementation. 

April 2018 
Jonathan 
Davies 

6 
Implement payment reminders via SMS and email to 
Housing Tenants.  Encouraging people to pay their rent 
real time. 

June 2018 
Jonathan 
Davies 

 

 

Risks 

 Failure to meet the Systems  

 Failure to meet the statutory Complaints time scales  

 Failure to support the performance management framework 

 

Ways of Working  

Which of the 5 Ways of 
working have we met? 

Strong 
Partial 
None 

How much work do we still need to do 
to meet these ways of working? 

A 

Looking at the long 
term so that we do not 
compromise the ability 
of future generations to 
meet their own needs 

Partial 

 To manage the health and wellbeing of the 
population of Carmarthenshire’s Localities and 
maintain the independence of our older adult 
population for as long as possible, integrated 
community services provide a wide range of 
services and interventions across the three 
‘offer’ areas.  

 We want Carmarthenshire to be a place that is 
the most active and healthy in the UK by getting 
More people, More active, More often. 
Leisure Services aims to deliver 6 key 
Outcomes for residents and visitors to the 
County: 
- Outcome 1: Supporting independence  
- Outcome 2: Keeping Safe 
- Outcome 3: Improving Health & Well Being 
- Outcome 4: Information, Advice and 

Signposting 
- Outcome 5: People achieve their potential 

(Workforce and users) 
- Outcome 6: Well Managed, sustainable, 

efficient services that contribute to a 
prosperous economy  

 

 The Swansea Bay Regeneration Strategy is 
set for a 2013-30 timespan & Swansea Bay 
City Region City Deal 2016-35. 

 Providing homes suitable to individual needs.  
Meeting current and future needs.  We are 
building what we need.  Creating jobs, training 
and opportunities and boosting the economy. 

 Our new assessment process focuses on the 
five elements of assessment, one of which Page 73



 

Page | 36 
 

considers the strengths and assets of the 
person, their support network and community 
to meet their own needs, thus preventing 
people becoming too reliant on statutory 
services. In addition, we are developing 
sustainable communities, including spice time 
credits and social prescription services. 

 

B 

Understanding the root 
causes of the issues to 
prevent them 
reoccurring 

Partial 

 Developing a new Homeless Strategy will help 
to shape and develop services for people who 
are homeless, threatened with homeless, and 
those in need of housing advice to prevent 
Homelessness. 

 Population needs assessment has been 
completed which has looked at the needs of 
those with care and support and carers with 
support and to consider preventative services 
to reduce and delay the development of care 
and support needs. The next stage over the 
next 12 months is to produce a regional area 
plan to develop further preventative services to 
reduce and delay the development of care and 
support needs. 

 The Swansea Bay Economic Regeneration 
Strategy and the City Deal 2016-2035 have 
examined some of the fundamental issues that 
need to be addressed to ensure economic 
success in the future. 

Page 74



 

Page | 37 
 

 Our Wellbeing of Future Generations 
assessment work will help us identify some of 
the main areas of concern. 

 

C 

Taking an integrated 
approach so that we 
look at all well- being 
goals and objectives of 
other services and 
partners 

Strong 

 A recent CSSIW inspection (July 2016) 
recognised  

- Multi-agency arrangements should be 
established to strengthen operational plans to 
support effective co-ordination of statutory 
partner’s completion of Joint Assessment 
Frameworks. 

 Public Services Board 

 Wales Audit Report 

 The County has an integrated Community 
Health & Social Care Service ‘infrastructure’. 
This model aligns with national and local policy 
direction with reference to delivering 
Integrated Health and Social Care. 

 The local authority has set up a regional 
partnership board made up of three local 
authorities, and the health board amongst 
others. The strategic priorities of the board 
are: 

- Information, Advice and Assistance 

- Integration of mental health and learning 

disabilities  

- Integrated systems (WCCIS) 

- Pooled budget arrangements 

- Integrated commissioning arrangements 

D 

Collaboration - 
Working with others in 
a collaborative way to 
find shared sustainable 
solutions 

Strong 

 The Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) 
Act 2015 establishes a statutory board, known 
as a Public Service Board (PSB), in each local 
authority area in Wales.  

 The local authority is part of the regional 
safeguarding board which is made up four 
local authorities, two health boards and one 
police force amongst others. The board is 
developing collaborative approaches to 
safeguarding arrangements, including but not 
limited to working jointly on safeguarding 
enquiries and setting threshold on when 
matters are reported to the safeguarding team 
within the Authority. 

 The West Wales Care Partnership was 
established under the Social Services and 
Wellbeing (Wales) Act, and the Partnership 
brings together Carmarthenshire, Ceredigion 
and Pembrokeshire County Councils, Hywel 
Dda University Health Board, colleagues from 
the third and independent sectors and service 
users and carers with a remit to transform care 
and support in the region and increase the 
pace of integration. Page 75

http://thewaleswewant.co.uk/about/well-being-future-generations-wales-act-2015
http://thewaleswewant.co.uk/about/well-being-future-generations-wales-act-2015


 

Page | 38 
 

 

 Part 9 of the Act required the creation of new 
Regional Partnership Boards (RPBs) with 
specific duties to promote the integration of 
care and support services. The RPBs cover 
the areas of each of the seven Local Health 
Boards in Wales. 

 The RPB has identified 5 strategic priorities 
and ‘pace setter’ agencies which will lead on 
implementation for the region. These are as 
follows: 

- Integrated commissioning (focusing on older 
adults services): (Pace setter: Pembrokeshire 
County Council) 

- Pooled funds: (Pace setter: Carmarthenshire 
County Council) 

- Remodelling mental health and learning 
disability services: (Pace setter: Hywel Dda 
University Health Board) 

- Information, Advice and Assistance: (Pace 
setter: Pembrokeshire County Council) 

- Implementation of the Welsh Community Care 
Information System (WCCIS) (Pace setter: 
Ceredigion County Council) 

 

E 

Involvement a 
diversity of population 
in decisions that affect 
them  

Partial 

 There is service user representation on both 
the regional safeguarding board and the 
regional partnership board. One of the focus 
for this year will be the development of a 
citizen panel who can input into changes in 
practice and process. 

 

 Our Well-being Assessment consultation had 
over 2,500 responses for Carmarthenshire 
residents. 

 Continuing a wide scale of consultation with 
our service users, staff, stakeholders, 
parents/carers and with the people of 
Carmarthenshire to meet the current and 
future needs to make Carmarthenshire a 
happy, safer, healthier place to live. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 Page 76



 

Page | 39 
 

 

 

 

Budget Summary 
 
The budget summary for 2018/19 will be included following the approval of the Council’s 

budget in February 2018. 

 

Savings and Efficiencies 
 
Efficiency savings will be included here following the approval of the Council’s budget in 

February 2018. 

 

Workforce Planning 
 Workforce Planning Toolkit and Divisional Profile to help complete this section 
 

A Departmental Workforce Plan is being drafted by the Departmental Management Team with 

support from HR staff, this section will be updated in 2018. 

 

Business Cycle 

 

Action 
 

By When 

 

Commissioning Leadership Team agree consultation plan  July 

Involve others to get their views and understand their expectations   September - November 

Understand what people have told us, self-assess, plan for 
performance, review budgets and prepare equality impact 
assessments  

December 

First draft of business plan  January 

Finalise business plan and get signed off  March 

Agree individual and team actions February/March 

Implementation Plan April 

 

 

 

  

5.  Resources 

Page 77

http://brian/worklife/Document%20Library/HR%20Policies%20and%20Guidance/Workforce%20planning/Workforce%20Planning.pdf


 

Page | 40 
 

Decision Making 

The following structure outlines Leadership and Governance for the Department for Communities 

and how we operate within the Council’s decision making process.  All major decisions and 

policies are made by the County Council. 

 

Carmarthenshire County Council 74 elected members.  
 

Executive Board 10 elected members, the Council’s cabinet. Chaired 
by the leader, Cllr E. Dole 

Our Executive Board members Social Care & Health  - Cllr Jane Tremlett 
(Independent) 
Public Protection – Cllr Philip Hughes (Independent) 
Culture, Sport and Tourism – Cllr Peter Hughes-
Griffiths (Plaid Cymru) 
Housing – Cllr Linda Evans (Plaid Cymru) 

Scrutiny Committees The decisions that we make are also scrutinised by 
elected members. We have the following scrutiny 
committees: 

Corporate Management Team (CMT) Chaired by the Chief Executive and includes the 
Assistant Chief Executives and Directors 

Departmental Management Team 
(DMT) 

Communities Department, Chaired by the Director  

Senior  Management Service and 
Performance Meetings 

Chaired by the Head of Services 

Team Meetings Each team within the division has team meetings 
which feed into the decision making process. 
Managers update their teams with decisions made 
through a combination of group meetings and 
individual 1-2-1’s/supervision. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  
Page 78



 

Page | 41 
 

 

 

Leisure Services 

Definition / Measure 
Reference 

 
(abbreviated definition is fine) 

2015/2
016 

2016/17 
2017/18 2017/18 

Cost 
Measu

re 

(£) 

 
All Wales Comparative 

data 

Our 
Result 

Our 
Resul

t 

Quartil
e 

 * to 
**** 

Welsh 
Media

n 

Welsh 
Best 

Quartile 

Targe
t set 

Result 
(when 

availabl
e) 

Target 
set  
(at 

EOY) 

 

PAM/
016 

The number of visits to 
Public Libraries during 
the year, per 1,000 
population 

7203 7646 **** 4835 5828 7684    

PAM/
017 

The number of visits to 
local authority sport and 
leisure centres during 
the year where the 
visitor will be 
participating in physical 
activity, per 1,000 
population 

6905 8289 ** 8374 9056 8996    

           

           

 
Housing & Public Protection Services by Division 

Definition / Measure 
Reference 

 
(abbreviated definition is fine) 

2015/1
6 

2016/17 

2017/18 2017/18 

Cost 
Measure 

(£) 

 
All Wales Comparative 

data 

Our 
Result 

Our 
Resul

t 

Quartil
e 

 * to 
**** 

Welsh 
Media

n 

Welsh 
Best 

Quartile 

Targe
t set 

Result 
(when 

availabl
e) 

Target 
set  
(at 

EOY) 

 

PLA
/006

b 

The number of 
additional affordable 
housing units provided 
during the year as a 
percentage of all 
additional housing units 
provided during the year 

8 8 * 33 51 30 45   

PA
M/0
23 

The percentage of food 
establishments which 
are ‘broadly compliant‘ 
with food hygiene 
standards 

94.98 97.50 **** 95.04 96.52 93.00    

Pa
m/0
15 

The average number of 
calendar days taken to 
deliver a Disabled 
Facilities Grant 

232 167 **** 235 190 165    

PA
M01

3 

The percentage of 
private sector dwellings 
that had been vacant for 

5.73 6.53 *** 11.77 6.41 6.75    

6.  Key Departmental Measures 

Page 79



 

Page | 42 
 

Definition / Measure 
Reference 

 
(abbreviated definition is fine) 

2015/1
6 

2016/17 

2017/18 2017/18 

Cost 
Measure 

(£) 

 
All Wales Comparative 

data 

Our 
Result 

Our 
Resul

t 

Quartil
e 

 * to 
**** 

Welsh 
Media

n 

Welsh 
Best 

Quartile 

Targe
t set 

Result 
(when 

availabl
e) 

Target 
set  
(at 

EOY) 
more than 6 months at 1 
April that were returned 
to occupation during the 
year through direct 
action by the local 
authority. 

PS
R/0
06 

The average number of 
calendar days taken to 
deliver low cost 
adaptation works 
(including equipment) in 
private dwellings where 
the Disabled Facilities 
Grant process is not 
used 

8 11    10    

 
 

Mental Health, Learning Disability Services & Safeguarding Services 

 

Definition / Measure 
Reference 

 
(abbreviated definition is fine) 

2015/1
6 

2016/17 
2017/18 2017/18 

Cost 
Measure 

(£) 

 
All Wales Comparative 

data 

Our 
Result 

Our 
Resul

t 

Quartil
e 

 * to 
**** 

Welsh 
Media

n 

Welsh 
Best 

Quartile 

Targe
t set 

Result 
(when 

availabl
e) 

Target 
set  
(at 

EOY) 

 

SC
A/1
8 

The percentage of adult 
protection enquiries 
completed within 7 days 

     75.00    

 

Integrated Services (Older Persons & Physical Disabilities) Services 
 

Definition / Measure 
Reference 

 
(abbreviated definition is fine) 

2015/1
6 

2016/17 
2017/18 2017/18 

Cost 
Measure 

(£) 

 
All Wales Comparative 

data 

Our 
Result 

Our 
Resul

t 

Quartil
e 

 * to 
**** 

Welsh 
Media

n 

Welsh 
Best 

Quartile 

Targe
t set 

Result 
(when 

availabl
e) 

Target 
set  
(at 

EOY) 

 

Pa
m/0
25 

The rate of delayed 
transfers of care for 
social care reasons per 
1,000 population aged 
75 or over 

 2.30    2.40    

SC
A/2
2 

Average age of adults 
entering residential care 
homes 

      85   

Page 80



 

Page | 43 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 81



 

Page | 44 
 

Local Government Performance 2016-17 
 
Annual bulletin on local authority performance. This bulletin contains information on a range of local authority services. The data highlights the 
overall level and range of performance across Wales. The full data set is available on our website.  
 http://www.dataunitwales.gov.uk/local-authority-performance-2016-17 

There is an interactive tool which allows the public, councillors, officers and partners to easily compare councils’ performance across Wales and 

over time. “MyLocalCouncil” (www.mylocalcouncil.info)  

 

P
age 82

http://www.dataunitwales.gov.uk/local-authority-performance-2016-17
http://www.mylocalcouncil.info/


 

Page | 45 
 

Welsh Government Returns 

 

 WG Quantative Performance Date Returns 

 WG Aggregate Data Collection Returns 

 WG Qualitative Performance Measures 

 WG SSDA 900 - Physical Disability Register 

 WG SSDA 901 - Learning Disability Register 

 WG Adult Safeguarding Return 

 CSSIW DoLs Return 

 Local Authority Enforcement Monitoring System 

(LAEMS) 

 Noise Return 

 Drinking Water Inspectorate 

 Licensing Return 

 National Fraud Initiative 

 Housing Assistance/Housing Grants 

 Housing Standards 

 Section 70 Return 

 Dogs Trust 

 Homeless Return 

 Rent Agreement SAP 

 Rough sleepers 

 Stock Rent 

 WHQS Part 1  

 WHQS Part 2 

 Rent Income Excellence Network 

 HQN 

 Rents, HB, DD, Former/Current Arrears 

Significant Strategies, Acts & Guidance 

for the Department 
 

 The Well-being of Future Generations   (Wales) Act 

 Housing (Wales) Act 2014 

 The Social Services and Well-being Act (2014)  

 Welsh Language Standards under s 44 Welsh 

Language (Wales) measure 2011 

 Freedom of Information Act 2000 (FOIA) 

 Data Protection Act 

 Equalities Act 2010 

 Disability Acts 

 Employment and Employee Acts 

 Health & Safety at Work Act 1974 and subsequent 

respective legislation 

 Environmental Protection Act 1990 

 Clean Neighbourhood Act & Environment Act 2005 

 Anti-Social Behaviour (Crime and Policing) Act 2014 

 Police & Crime Act 2009 

 One Wales Connecting the Nation, The Wales 

Transport Strategy  

 Swansea Bay City Region Economic Development 

Strategy 

 EU revised Waste Framework Directive 2008/98/EC 

 Towards Zero Waste (WG’s overarching waste 

strategy document). 

 Carmarthenshire County Council Corporate Strategy 

2015 – 2020  

 Ageing Well in Wales Plan  

 Divisional Business Plans 

 Air Quality Management Areas (AQMAs) 

P
age 83



 

Page | 46 
 

 

Well-being of Future Generations Act 2015  
 

This is a new Act introduced by the Welsh Government, which will change aspects of how we 
work. The general purpose of the Act is to ensure that the governance arrangements of public 
bodies for improving the well-being of Wales take the needs of future generations into account. 
The Act is designed to improve the economic, social and environmental well-being of Wales in 
accordance with sustainable development principles.  
 
A.  The Sustainable Development Principle of the Act 
 
The new law states that we must carry out sustainable development, improving the economic, 
social, environmental and cultural well-being of Wales. The sustainable development principle 
is 

 
 ‘... the public body must act in a manner which seeks to ensure that the needs of the 
present are met without compromising the ability of future generations to meet their own 
needs.”  

 
B.  The Five Ways of Working required by the Act 
 
To show that we have applied the sustainable development principle we must demonstrate the 
following 5 ways of working:- 
 

1. Looking to the long term so that we do not compromise the ability of future generations 
to meet their own needs;  

2. Taking an integrated approach so that public bodies look at all the well-being goals in 
deciding on their priorities;  

3. Involving a diversity of the population in the decisions that affect them;  
4. Working with others in a collaborative way to find shared sustainable solutions;  
5. Understanding the root causes of issues to prevent them from occurring.  
 

 
C.  The Seven Well-being Goals of the Act  
 
There are 7 well-being goals in the Act. 
Together they provide a shared vision for public 
bodies to work towards. We must work towards 
achieving all of them. 
 
 
 
 

  
 

 

 

As a public body subject to the Act we had to 

publish Well-being Objectives by the 31st 

March 2017 

  

7.  Appendix 1 

 

Page 84



 

Page | 47 
 

 
Key for the following table    Link to the Corporate Map of WbO and HOS 
1=Lead role – Key contributions identified in the Action Plan in this business plan  
2= Significant Support - Significant contributing Actions identified in this plan 
3- Some contributing Actions   Link to Spreadsheet- with all Well being Objectives and action plans – filtered by Department and 
Division   

Council Well-being Objective 

MHLD 
Servic

es 

Integrate
d Services 

 

Housing, 
PP & Care 
& Support 

 

Leisure 
Commissioning 

 

Avril 
Bracey 

Rhian 
Dawson 

Robin 
Staines 

Ian 
Jones 

Chris Harrison 

S
ta

rt
 W

e
ll
 

1 
Help to give every child the best start 
in life and improve their early life 
experiences. 

     

2 Help children live healthy lifestyles    2  

3 
Continue to Improve learner 
attainment for all 

     

4 
Reduce the number of young adults 
that are Not in Education, 
Employment or Training 

2     

5 

Tackle poverty by doing all we can to 
prevent it, help people into work and 
improve the lives of those living in 
poverty 

  2   

L
iv

e
 W

e
ll
 6 

Create more jobs and growth 
throughout the county 

     

7 
Increase the availability of rented 
and affordable homes 

  1   

8 
Help people live healthy lives 
(tackling risky behaviour & obesity) 

   1  

9 
Support good connections with 
friends, family and safer communities 

2 2 3   

A
g

e
 W

e
ll
 

10 
Support the growing numbers of 
older people to maintain dignity and 
independence in their later years 

 1 3   

11 
A Council-wide approach to support 
Ageing Well in the county 

3 3 3 3 3 

In
 a

 H
e

a
lt

h
y
 &

  

S
a

fe
  

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t 12 

Look after the environment now and 
for the future 

     

13 
Improve the highway and transport 
infrastructure and connectivity 

     

14 
Promote Welsh Language and 
Culture 

   
3 
 

 

 15 Governance and Use of Resources       

Appendix 2  Carmarthenshire County Councils Well-being Objectives 

 

 

Page 85

file://///ntcarmcc/cfp/Management/Performance%20Management%20&%20Strategic%20Planning/Business%20Planning/2018-19/Well-being%20of%20Future%20Generations/Individual%20public%20body%20role/Council's%20Well-being%20Objectives/WbObjective%20-%20Material/Ownership/Wb%20Objective%20-%20Lead%20officers.xls
file://///ntcarmcc/cfp/Management/Performance%20Management%20&%20Strategic%20Planning/Business%20Planning/2018-19/Well-being%20of%20Future%20Generations/Individual%20public%20body%20role/Council's%20Well-being%20Objectives/17-18%20WB%20Objectives%20document/Actions%20&%20Measures/List%20of%20Actions-Measures.xlsx
file://///ntcarmcc/cfp/Management/Performance%20Management%20&%20Strategic%20Planning/Business%20Planning/2018-19/Well-being%20of%20Future%20Generations/Individual%20public%20body%20role/Council's%20Well-being%20Objectives/17-18%20WB%20Objectives%20document/Actions%20&%20Measures/List%20of%20Actions-Measures.xlsx


 

Page | 48 
 

 

 
How Services join-up to show contributions to the National Well-being Goals 
 

The identification of well-being objectives should flow from having a clear view of the contribution a 

public body can make to the seven well-being goals 

KEY:  L = Lead Role / S = Supporting 
Role 

The 7 Well-being of Future Generations 
Goals See Appendix 3 for Definitions 

Department Division 

P
ro

s
p

e
ri

ty
 

R
e
s

il
ie

n
c

e
 

H
e
a

lt
h

ie
r 

M
o

re
 E

q
u

a
l 

C
o

h
e

s
iv

e
 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
 

C
u

lt
u

re
 a

n
d

 

W
e

ls
h

 

L
a

n
g

u
a
g

e
 

G
lo

b
a
l 

R
e
s

p
o

n
s
ib

il
it

y
 

Communiti
es 

Business Support & Service Imp. S S S S S S S 

Commissioning  S S S S S S S 

Housing & Public Protection S S S S S S S 

Integrated Services  S S S S S S  S 

Leisure S S L S S S S 

Mental Health & Learning 
Disability 

S S S S S S S 

 

Carmarthenshire’s Corporate Strategy 2015-20  
In September 2015 the Council published its Corporate Strategy and outlined its key areas of 
focus across seven outcome areas.  The Corporate Strategy will be revised following the May 
2017 Local Government Elections.   

 

Ref Corporate Strategic Expected Outcomes and Strategic Focus Lead Role 
Significant 

Support 

 Making Better Use of Resources   
1 Managing and making best use of the Council’s property and assets with a focus on 

rationalising office accommodation and sharing with other partners as well as 
facilitating community ownership of assets for community benefit   

  

2 Providing services as efficiently as possible, ensuring value for money and 
supporting staff in order to reduce sickness absence rates 

  

3 Investigating and developing new ways of working and providing services   

4 Working in collaboration with other organisations to identify areas for shared 
services and economies of scale to reduce running costs 

  

5 Reviewing management and 'back office' costs in order where possible to safeguard 
'front line' services. 

  

 Improved public satisfaction levels with the services provided by the Council   

 Reduction in organisational ‘running costs’   

 Increased on line activity to address public queries and transactions   

 Building a Better Council   
6 Promoting local democracy and transparency by further developing approaches to 

engaging and communicating with our residents and stakeholders including the 
increased use of digital technologies 

  

7 Ensuring the Council’s governance arrangements and constitution are fit for 
purpose for future requirements in line with the findings and recommendations of 
the 2014 WLGA ‘Peer Review’  

  

8 Managing and supporting our workforce to provide better outcomes for our 
residents through appropriate recruitment, retention and development of our staff. 

  

Appendix 3 

 

Page 86



 

Page | 49 
 

Ref Corporate Strategic Expected Outcomes and Strategic Focus Lead Role 
Significant 

Support 

9 Developing an integrated workforce plan that supports the Council’s strategic 
objectives. 

  

10 Increasing collaboration with our partners and communities in order support the 
delivery of services 

  

11 Responding to the need to reform local government and ensuring Carmarthenshire 
is well positioned in any future arrangements. 

  

12 Strengthening the position of the Welsh language in Carmarthenshire by 
implementing the recommendations of the ‘Welsh Language in Carmarthenshire’s 
report (March 2014) 

  

 Increasing public communication, consultation and engagement   

 Improved staff satisfaction levels    

 Reduced staff sickness absence levels   

 People in Carmarthenshire are healthier   
13 Ensuring further integration of community focused Council support services with 

health services 
  

14 Enhancing the range of community options to support older people to remain 
independent in their later years  

  

15 Supporting disadvantaged children and families to build their resilience with early 
intervention through targeted intervention programmes such as Flying Start, 
Families First and Communities First and embedding this practice within our core 
services 

  

16 Increasing the availability of rented and affordable homes to support the needs of 
local people by building new homes, bringing empty homes back into use and 
ensuring an allocation of affordable homes on new developments 

  

17 Mitigating the local impacts of welfare reform by supporting effected residents 
through the changes  

  

18 Supporting residents suffering from fuel poverty and introducing renewable energy 
technology to our tenants homes in order to save them money on energy costs 

  

19 Getting more Carmarthenshire people more (physically and creatively) active, more 
often in order to improve the health and well-being of our residents.  

  

 Reduction in referrals to adult and children’s social services   

 Increased availability of rented and affordable homes   

 Increased use of leisure facilities   

 People in Carmarthenshire fulfil their learning potential   
20 Ensuring continuous improvement in education outcomes for all children and young 

people across all learning phases 
  

21 Successfully introducing and translating the new national curriculum and 
qualifications into an inspiring and engaging local curriculum 

  

22 Developing a self-improving school system across the County making every school 
a good and improving school 

  

23 Continuing to improve school attendance   

24 Ensuring a range of youth support services to foster the engagement of young 
people in education, work and community life 

  

25 Continuing to improve the condition, suitability and resource efficiency of our 
schools network through the Modernising Education Plan by investing a further 
£170m in the improvement of school premises through the 21st Century School 
Programme 

  

26 Further developing the ‘Un Sir Gâr - Yr Hwb’ service approach by simplifying access 
to learning and employment support services for young people and working age 
people.  

  

27 Further developing Welsh medium and bilingual education provision within the 
County in accordance with the Welsh in Education Strategic Plan 

  

 Improved educational attainment   

 Improved school attendance rates   

 Reduced number of young people Not in Education, Employment or Training   

 Improved condition of schools   

 People who live, work and visit Carmarthenshire are safe and feel safer   
28 Protecting and safeguarding children and adults from harm   

Page 87



 

Page | 50 
 

Ref Corporate Strategic Expected Outcomes and Strategic Focus Lead Role 
Significant 

Support 

29 Supporting children, young people and families at times when they are facing 
challenging circumstances and enabling them to build their resilience to cope in the 
future  

  

30 Being good corporate parents to children and young people who come into the care 
of the Authority 

  

31 Reducing speeding and road traffic accidents   

32 Reducing anti-social behaviour by working in partnership with other agencies and 
communities to tackle local problems 

  

33 Reducing drug and alcohol misuse within the county   

 Appropriate support provided to children, young people and families as required   

 Reduction in road casualties   

 Reduction in total recorded crime   

 Reduction in anti-social behaviour   

 Carmarthenshire’s communities and environment are sustainable   
34 Enhancing and utilising our rich natural environment whilst at the same time 

adapting to future needs as a result of climate change 
  

35 Supporting resilience with our rural and urban communities    

36 Taking further steps to reduce waste and increasing recycling working towards 
achieving the national target of 70% recycling by 2024/25 (from 59% in 
Carmarthenshire in 2014) 

  

37 Improving digital inclusion within the county but ensuring access to IT equipment, 
developing digital literacy and supporting connectivity for our communities 

  

 Increased rates of recycling   

 Improved digital access   

 Improved transport links   

 Increased use of renewable energy   

 Carmarthenshire has a stronger and more prosperous economy   
38 Creating jobs and growth throughout the County   

39 Developing training and learning opportunities for local people   

40 Improving the highway infrastructure and communication network to support further 
economic development and connectivity  

  

41 Ensuring long-term economic and social benefits for Carmarthenshire through the 
Swansea Bay City Region and future European and external funding avenues 

  

 Increased employment   

 Reduction in working age population in receipt of out of work benefits   

 Increased economic activity and productivity   

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Page 88



 

Page | 51 
 

 
The seven Well-being goals of the Future Generations Act 
 

A prosperous 
Wales 

 

An innovative, productive and low carbon society which recognises the 
limits of the global environment and therefore uses resources efficiently 
and proportionately (including acting on climate change), and which 
develops a skilled and well-educated population in an economy which 
generates wealth and provides employment opportunities, allowing people 
to take advantage of the wealth generated through securing decent work. 
 Contact Stuart Walters 3241 or Helen Morgan 4902 / Contact Dave 
Astins 6426 
 

A resilient Wales 
 

A nation which maintains and enhances a biodiverse natural environment 
with healthy functioning ecosystems that support social, economic and 
ecological resilience and the capacity to adapt to change (for example 
climate change). 
 Contact Rosie Carmichael 2727 or Isabel Macho 3390 
 

A healthier Wales 
 

A society in which people’s physical and mental well-being is maximised 
and in which choices and behaviours that benefit future health are 
understood. 
 Contact Joel Martin 2619 
 

A more equal 
Wales 

 

A society that enables people to fulfil their potential no matter what their 
background or circumstances (including their socio economic background 
and circumstances). 
 Contact Llinos Evans 4914 
 

A Wales of 
cohesive 

communities 

Attractive, viable, safe and well-connected communities. 
 Contact Kate Thomas 4202 

 

A Wales of vibrant 
culture and 

thriving Welsh 
Language 

A society that promotes and protects culture, heritage and the Welsh 
language, and which encourages people to participate in the arts, and 
sports and recreation. 
 
Welsh Language – Active Offer principle 
 

A globally 
responsible Wales 

A nation which, when doing anything to improve the economic, social, 
environmental and cultural well-being of Wales, takes account of whether 
doing such a thing makes a positive contribution to global well-being 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 89



This page is intentionally left blank



SOCIAL CARE AND HEALTH
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
18TH DECEMBER, 2017 

UPDATE ON TRADING STANDARDS 
INITIATIVES- PROTECTION OF ELDERLY AND 

VULNERABLE CITIZENS IN CARMARTHENSHIRE 
To consider and comment on the following issues:

 The Progress and development of an initiative aimed at maintaining and improving 
citizen’s quality of life at home, improving community resilience by reducing financial 
exploitation of vulnerable adults.

Reasons: 

 To update members on the work being undertaken.

To be referred to the Executive Board / Council for decision: NO

Executive Board Member Portfolio Holders: 
 Cllr. Jane Tremlett (Social Care and Health Portfolio Holder)  
 Cllr. Philip Hughes (Public Protection Portfolio Holder) 
 Cllr. Cefin Campbell (Communities and Rural Affairs) 

Directorate: 
Communities

 
Name of Head of Service:
Robin Staines

Report Author:
Roger Edmunds

Designations:

Head of Housing and Public 
Protection

Trading Standards Services 
Manager

Tel Nos. / E-Mail Addresses:

01267 228960
RStaines@carmarthenshire.gov.uk

01554 742280
REdmunds@carmarthenshire.gov.uk

Page 91

Agenda Item 7



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

SOCIAL CARE & HEALTH 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
18TH DECEMBER, 2017

UPDATE ON TRADING STANDARDS INITIATIVES 
IN PLACE TO PROTECT ELDERLY AND 
VULNERABLE IN CARMARTHENSHIRE 

Members are informed as to the development of the above initiatives and are asked to 
appreciate how it will have a positive impact, in maintaining citizen’s quality of life. 

It is hoped that as a result of this work, we can improve community resilience and help 
people retain independence and enjoy an extended quality of life in their own 
communities. Please see attached report.

DETAILED REPORT ATTACHED? YES 

Page 92



IMPLICATIONS

I confirm that other than those implications which have been agreed with the appropriate 
Directors / Heads of Service and are referred to in detail below, there are no other implications 
associated with this report.

Signed:   Robin Staines Head of Housing & Public Protection

Policy, 
Crime & 
Disorder 
and 
Equalities

Legal Finance ICT Risk 
Management 
Issues

Staffing 
Implications 

Physical 
Assets 

YES NONE NONE NONE NONE NONE NONE

1. Policy, Crime & Disorder and Equalities 

Reduction in scams, incidents of cold calling and financial exploitation supporting 
vulnerable adults in their homes.

CONSULTATIONS

I confirm that the appropriate consultations have taken in place and the outcomes are as detailed 
below:

Signed:   Robin Staines Head of Housing & Public Protection

1. Local Member(s) – positive feedback and support by those who have taken part.

2. Community / Town Councils – as above

3. Relevant Partners – DPP Police ,CSP.

 4.  Staff Side Representatives and other Organisations – N/A

Section 100D Local Government Act, 1972 – Access to Information
List of Background Papers used in the preparation of this report:

 THERE ARE NONE.

Title of Document File Ref No. / Locations that the papers are available for public 
inspection

Page 93



This page is intentionally left blank



                  

Trading Standards Update – Scrutiny Committee - 18th December 2017  

The Progress and development of an initiative aimed at maintaining and improving citizen’s 

quality of life at home, improving community resilience by reducing financial exploitation of 

vulnerable adults.

1.0. Backdrop/Context:

To assist the authority in carrying out its statutory obligations in relation to financial 

abuse, the team realigned part of their service offering in 2014 to reflect policy changes 

brought about by the Social Services and Wellbeing (Wales) Act 2014 (SSAWW).                        

The result was the creation of the Financial Exploitation Safeguarding Scheme (FESS), a 

multiagency initiative designed to detect and prevent the financial abuse of vulnerable 

persons.

FESS consolidated the team’s portfolio of 11 practical financial safeguarding 

projects/initiatives into a single underlying financial safeguarding theme, subsequently 

creating a ‘financial safeguarding network’ that promotes the team’s portfolio as a 

reciprocal voluntary participation scheme where private, third sector and local authority 

partners agree to work with Trading Standards to develop policies and procedures to 

identify, refer and support victims of financial abuse.  

In return, partners receive access to a priority referral gateway, priority officer response, 

specialist training and access to specialist technical measures to support victims. 

Atal Galwadau 
Ffôn sy’n Peri Niwsans

Truecall Nuisance 
Telephone Call Blocking

ARAGOR

Ymweliadau sy'n Seiliedig ar Wybodaeth y Ganolfan Sgamiau

Nodi ifobl 
sy'n agored i 
niwed drwy 
wybodaeth a 
dargedir...

Scams Hub Intelligence Led Visits

ARAGOR
Identifying 
vulnerable 
ifeoifle 
through 
targeted 
intelligence...

PARTHAU DIM GALW HEB WAHODDIAD
O

ARAGOR

ANNBYNAETHAGRYMUSODRWYFASNACHWYRDBYNADWYNDEPENDENCEANDEMPOWERMENTTHROUGHTRUSTEDTRADERS

Tasgmyn a
Garddwyr

Cofrestredig

Registered
Handypersonsand
GardenersScheme

ARAGOR

I M S Z K N A  I n t e r v en t i o n s

Gwella Iechyd a Lles, Lleihau 
Pwysau Dyledion Improves 
Health and Wellbeing, Relieves 
the Pressure of Debt

£

ARAGOR

Ymgyrch Ymwybyddiaeth Don’t Get Caught
Sgamiau Peidiwch â trwr eness

Ymyriadau Vulnerable
Defnyddwyr Agored i Niwed Consumer Interventions

Atal drwy
Ymwybyddiaeth

ac Addysg

ARAGOR
Prevention 
through 
Awareness 
and Education

ARAGOR

SYNNWYR ARLAN

Atal ac annibyniaeth drwy Addysg Ariannol
"AV Financial Education

MONEYWLSE

ARAGOR

Protocolau Gwasanaethau Ariannol 
Financial Services Protocol

ARAGOR

Page 95



FESS has received numerous national awards and accolades1 and has so far been 

replicated by 27 local authorities2 nationwide. 

FESS is further subject to a formal academic research project led by Carmarthenshire 

County Council Trading Standards in conjunction with Cardiff University3 

1. Truecall Nuisance Telephone Call Blocking:

The team initially purchased 100 devices using money confiscated from criminals 

under the Proceeds of Crime Act 2002 - Social Services have since provided 

additional funding to purchase a further 120 devices and the installation services 

of Care and Repair. The project is ongoing and Carmarthenshire nuisance call 

blockers have so far protected 67 vulnerable residents from nuisance/ scam 

telephone calls and blocked over 41,000 nuisance calls. (See appended infograph).4        

2. National Trading Standards Board (NTSB) Scams Hub Intelligence Led Visits:

As part of their national enforcement activities – Intelligence recovered by the 

NTSB in the form of victims lists or ‘suckers list’ are forwarded to local authority 

Trading Standards for safeguarding intervention.     

The team prioritise this intelligence, cross referencing victims with Social Services 

and visiting/supporting victims with Police/Social Workers as appropriate. 

The project is ongoing and the team have responded to intelligence relating to over 

600 victims residing in Carmarthenshire (40 of whom were identified as vulnerable 

and in receipt of services from local authority social services teams). 

3. NTSB Royal Mail Staff Training Program: 

National project coordinated by the NTSB in conjunction with Royal Mail to  provide 

a formal training program to Post Office sorting offices in relation to Mass Mail Fraud 

1 Municipal Journal Awards 2016 – Highly Commended - Innovation in Partnership, Municipal Journal Awards 2016 – 
Moneywise – Winner - Trading Standards and Environmental Health, Chartered Trading Standards Institute (CTSI) 
Conference 2016 – Winner -  Best Local Authority Exhibitor,  Wales Public Health Conference 2016 – Winner - Poster 
Competition, Association of Directors of Social Services (ADSS) Poster Competition 2015, 2017 – Shortlisted Poster 
Competition.                  

2 Anglesey, Gwynedd, Conwy, Wrexham, Flintshire, Denbighshire, Powys, Swansea, Neath, Rhondda Cynon Taf, 
Monmouthshire, Gloucestershire, Worcestershire, Warwickshire, Hertfordshire, Nottinghamshire, Derbyshire, Essex, 
South Tyneside, Plymouth, Bury, Trafford, Sandwell, Islington, Hackney, East Sussex, Dudley.                      

3 Trading Standards Financial Safeguarding Interventions – A social care perspective – Carmarthenshire Trading 
Standards – Research supervisor - Professor Mike Levi – Cardiff University School of Social Sciences (SOCSI)   
https://www.cardiff.ac.uk/people/view/38041-levi-michael     

4 Truecall infographic – Steve Smith – Director - Arona Ltd (Truecall) 03/11/2017    

Page 96

https://www.cardiff.ac.uk/people/view/38041-levi-michael%20%20%20%20%20


(MMF). 

The team have delivered the formal training program to the Ammanford sorting 

office and will shortly be undertaking the program with the Llanelli and Carmarthen 

offices.

4. Local Authority No Cold Calling Zones:

Working in collaboration with Dyfed Powys Police, Mid and West Wales Fire and 

Rescue Service and CCC Housing Services, the service has set up 53 no cold calling 

zones (NCCZ’s) and established the first no cold calling village in Carmarthenshire 

at Cilycwm. 

Zones are implemented within areas where there is evidence of doorstep 

crime/distraction burglary, or where there is a high proportion of vulnerable 

residents. Residents are balloted and where a majority are in favor NCCZ’s are 

implemented.

The initiative creates a criminal offence of calling on persons living in a zone and is 

punishable with a fine of up to £5000 and 2 years in imprisonment.  

5. Registered Handypersons and Gardeners Scheme:

The team publish and advertise a free register of reputable traders who specialise 

in minor household and gardening work. The aim of the scheme is to ensure that 

consumers, in particular the elderly and vulnerable, are able to engage with 

confidently with the services of Handypersons and Gardeners.

Members of the scheme are required to sign an agreement promising to trade 

fairly and honestly and are regularly audited to ensure that they have up to date 

public liability insurance. Traders are further subject to a criminal record check.

We currently have 16 tradespersons registered with the initiative.   

6. Trading Standards Debt and Mental Health Interventions:

The service has developed a programme for debt advisers, advocates, support 

workers and social workers to refer vulnerable persons who are experiencing debt 

and mental health issues.

The process involves the use of the Money Advice Liaison Group (MALG) and Royal 

College of Psychiatrists Debt and Mental Health Evidence Form (DMHEF).

Trading Standards can in some instances initiate criminal and/or civil enforcement 

action against such creditors, in particular, where practices are aggressive, 

Page 97



fraudulent, contravene the requirements of professional diligence or breach 

consumer credit licensing requirements.

The initiative has written off £23,000 of debt for vulnerable consumers where 

money should not have been lent due to vulnerability, or where the consumer has 

no realistic prospect of being able to repay the monies due to vulnerability.         

7. Don’t Get Caught! Scams Awareness Campaign: 

72 Pop up Shops/ Scams awareness events have been delivered at local bank 

branches and at community events across the county. The campaign is based on a 

mock prize draw. 

Such events aim to raise awareness of the issues surrounding financial abuse and 

provide an opportunity for officers to engage directly with the public, increase 

stakeholder engagement, promote financial safeguarding referrals and reinforce 

consumer protection messages.             

8. Vulnerable Consumer Advice and Advocacy:

The service provides advice and advocacy services to vulnerable persons to enable 

them enforce consumer rights where they would otherwise be unable.

The service has a service level agreement with Citizens Advice Consumer Services 

(CACS) to ensure that vulnerable persons can still access specialist consumer advice 

and advocacy services.

We further maintain strong links with our local Citizens Advice Bureau (CAB), who 

refer vulnerable persons and criminal issues directly. (This is a reciprocal 

relationship and we utilise CAB services as part of our broader scheme where 

specialist support is required).

Assistance with letter writing, helping consumers understand complex contractual 

information or advice on taking a complaint through the civil courts or ombudsman 

services may also be provided.

This work encourages independence and participation to people who may 

otherwise be excluded from accessing justice and can also identify complex 

complaints/ issues that are not easily identifiable such as the improper sales of 

complex financial products or complex fraud.

9. Moneywise Financial Education/Literacy Program:

Money wise is a financial education/ literacy program created by Carmarthenshire Trading 

Standards in 2009.

Page 98



Since then we have developed the program and been delivering bilingual lessons in local 

schools to children aged between 9 and 11 years, teaching them the basics of financial 

literacy and money management.

We have developed a bilingual web-based resource for Key Stage 2, covering themes such as 

employment and education, wages, income tax, budgeting, needs and wants, borrowing 

money and consumer rights.

The program has been well received by parents/schools and further embraced by the 

authority Education Department. 

The program has been taken up by 69 schools out of 106 across the county.

10. Financial Services, Private and Third Sector Safeguarding Protocols (FSP’s):    

Financial Safeguarding Protocols (FSP’s) have been in place since 2014 and have 

been agreed with all branches of Halifax, Barclays, Santander and the Citizens 

Advice Bureau in Carmarthenshire:

 £520,000 has been prevented from leaving residents bank accounts through the 

direct intervention of Trading Standards Officers.

 £482,647 has been identified as newly identified detriment i.e. money that would otherwise 

have gone undetected without Trading Standards intervention.    

 £70,000 consumer redress - Money returned to consumer i.e. money returned to 

consumers through direct or assisted intervention of Trading Standards Officers.     

Carmarthenshire FSP’s pre-empt and compliment a recent initiative launched by 

the Police (The National Banking Protocol) where potential victims are identified 

by Bank staff and prioritised for a 999 emergency response.

It is our intention to promote FSP’s with any organisation/ authority team (not only 

Banks) who comes into contact with vulnerable people, and who may be in a 

position to identify financial abuse. 

We use our relationships with Social Services and our recently redefined 

Intelligence Sharing Protocol (ISP) with Dyfed Powys Police to respond and support 

victims referred through such channels.                 

11. Independent Financial Adviser – Assured Advice Referral Scheme:   

The team have established links with 5 local ‘regulated’ independent financial 

advisers who have agreed to take free priority referrals of vulnerable victims and 

provide regulated advice on investment/pension/insurance fraud.  

Referrals are made on the basis that regulated advice is assured by the Financial 

Page 99



Conduct Authority (FCA) and that consumers have recourse to the Financial 

Services Compensation Scheme (FSCS) for negligent/fraudulent advice.         

2.0. The future:

The FESS initiative provides a framework to assist the authority in building capacity to deal 

with the issues presented by financial abuse and helps assist the authority in meeting its 

obligations for early intervention, prevention and joint working strategies for the purposes 

of the Social Services and Wellbeing (Wales) Act 2014.

It should be further noted that much of the work undertaken by Carmarthenshire Trading 

Standards (not outlined in this report) may support further policy/compliance issues 

brought about by the Wellbeing of Future Generations Act 2015.  

All of the initiatives described in this report are ongoing and the team continue to widen 

coverage and to develop new initiatives and ways of working as the scheme progresses. It 

is hoped that the formal research undertaken by the team will provide an empirical basis 

to support the wider value of the financial safeguarding work of the team in promoting 

social and economic wellbeing, increasing consumer resilience and contributing to 

improved health outcomes through the continued development of early intervention, 

prevention and joint working strategies. 

We are looking forward to the future and to see how our work develops. The work of the 

department has already impressed at a national level and Carmarthenshire County Council 

should be recognized as one of the most proactive and forward thinking authorities in the 

UK when it comes to addressing the issues posed by the financial abuse of vulnerable 

people.              

Page 100



Page 101



This page is intentionally left blank



EXPLANATION FOR NON-SUBMISSION OF SCRUTINY REPORTS

SCRUTINY COMMITTEE :  SOCIAL CARE & HEALTH

DATE OF MEETING :  18TH DECEMBER, 2017

ITEM RESPONSIBLE 
OFFICER

EXPLANATION REVISED 
SUBMISSION 

DATE

Mental Health 
Transformation

Avril Bracey, 
Head of 
Mental Health 
& Learning 
Disabilities

The Transforming Mental 
Health Services report 
following the consultation 
was due to go formally to 
the Health Board in 
November. Provisional 
date for this to go to CCC 
Scrutiny was set for 
December with this in 
mind. The report is now 
going to the Health 
Board on January 25th. 
Subsequently the report 
will be available to be 
presented to Scrutiny 
following this date and 
the project if agreed by 
the Health Board will 
move into the 
implementation phase. 

5th March, 
2018

Page 103

Agenda Item 8



This page is intentionally left blank



EXPLANATION FOR NON-SUBMISSION OF SCRUTINY REPORTS

SCRUTINY COMMITTEE : Social Care & Health

DATE OF MEETING : 18th December, 2017

ITEM RESPONSIBLE 
OFFICER

EXPLANATION REVISED 
SUBMISSION 

DATE
Carers 
Assessments

Chris 
Harrison

A number of subjects 
related to carers has been 
tabled as part of the 
Forward Work Programme. 
This includes an update on 
the Carers Partnership 
Board, to include the Carers 
Strategy, Carers 
Assessments and Carers 
Forum.   

It is anticipated that the 
Committee will be in a more 
informed position to 
consider and make 
proposals about Carers by 
considering the various 
Plans and related issues 
together. 

19th April, 
2018

Page 105



This page is intentionally left blank



SOCIAL CARE & HEALTH
 SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

18TH DECEMBER 2017

FORTHCOMING ITEMS FOR NEXT MEETING
24TH JANUARY 2018

Discussion Topic Background

Pooled Budgets The Council must respond to statutory obligations 
under the Social Services and Wellbeing (Wales) 
Act 2014 and in particular establish pooled funds 
for adult care homes. This item will provide the 
Committee with an update on the latest position. 

Learning Disability Strategy This item will provide the Committee with 
information regarding the Learning Disability 
Strategy.

DoLS Update The Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards (DoLS) are 
aimed at ensuring that individuals in care homes, 
hospitals or supported living facilities are cared for 
in ways that do not inappropriately restrict their 
freedoms. This item will provide the Committee 
with an update on the latest developments.

Half Yearly Adult Social Care 
Compliments and Complaints 
Report 2017/18

This item will provide the Committee with a report 
providing details of the compliments and 
complaints received in relation to Adult Social Care 
for the period April to September 2017.

Actions and Referrals Update These quarterly updates provide details on 
progress made in relation to actions and requests 
which arose at previous meetings.

Page 107

Agenda Item 9



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	5 REVENUE BUDGET STRATEGY CONSULTATION 2018/19-2020/21.
	Budget Strategy App A
	Budget Strategy App Ai
	Budget Strategy App Aii
	Budget Strategy App B
	Budget Strategy App C

	6 COMMUNITIES DEPARTMENTAL DRAFT BUSINESS PLAN 2018/19-2021.
	Report

	7 UPDATE ON TRADING STANDARDS INITIATIVES - PROTECTION OF ELDERLY AND VULNERABLE CITIZENS IN CARMARTHENSHIRE.
	Report
	Appendix

	8 EXPLANATIONS FOR NON-SUBMISSION OF SCRUTINY REPORTS.
	Non submission form carers

	9 FORTHCOMING ITEMS

